
 

1 
 

 
INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD 

MEETING AGENDA - REVISED 
Monday, April 15, 2024 – 7:00 p.m.  

Via Zoom 
 

 
1. Call to Order, Welcome & Land Acknowledgement   
 
2. Approval of Agenda       (copy & motion)  
 

[Motion #2024.  – THAT the agenda of the April 15, 2024 meeting be 
approved as presented and amended.] 

 
3. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest 

None at time of agenda creation 
 

4. Delegations to the Board 
None at time of agenda creation    

 
Consent Agenda         

 
5.       Approval of Previous Minutes                (copy) 

 
6. Correspondence                  (copy) 

 

7. Reports for Information 

a) CEO Report                     (copy) 

b) Municipal Council Report            (copy & information sharing) 

c) Library Board Report                   (information sharing) 

d) Board Committee Reports    

   No committees have met since the last Board Meeting 

e) Health & Safety Update                 (copy) 

 
 

Consent Recommendation 
 

[Motion #2024.  – THAT the consent agenda items 5a.01.01 to 7e.01.01, 
and the recommendations contained therein be approved as presented.] 

 
 

2a.01.01 



 

2 
 

Agenda 
 
8. Staff Reports & Reports for Action 

a) LIB-07-2024 Library Associations and Organizations        (copy & motion) 
  

[Motion #2024.  – THAT the Staff Report LIB-07-2024 Library Associations 
and Organizations be received for information.] 

 
9. Business Arising 

None at time of agenda creation 
 
10. Policies 

 
a) OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Information Technology Policy   

#2024-10 

(copy & motion) 
 

Recommendation 
 
[Motion #2024. – THAT the OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Information 

Technology Policy #E-2024-10 be approved as presented.]  

 
11.  Strategic Issues 

 None at time of agenda creation 
           

12.   New Business 
None at time of agenda creation 

 
13. Comments and Announcements 
 a)   Calendar of Events               (link) 
 https://innisfil.bibliocommons.com/events/search/index 

  

https://innisfil.bibliocommons.com/events/search/index


 

3 
 

14. In Camera 
 

Recommendation 
 
a) Consideration of a resolution to hold a Closed Session Meeting as 
provided for under the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended, the Public Libraries 
Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P.44, and the Library Board’s Procedural By-Law Policy  
# B-2023-03. 
 

[Motion #2024. - THAT the Board holds a “Closed Session” Committee of 

the Whole meeting as provided for by the Municipal Act, 2001, as 

amended, the Public Libraries Act, R.S.O. c. P.44, and the Board’s 

Procedural By-Law Policy #B-2023-03 to deal with: 

a) A matter in respect of which a board or committee of a board may hold a 
closed meeting under another Act;  Educational Training (Section 239(3.1) 
of the Municipal Act, 2001)] 

 Cybersecurity 
 

[Motion #2024. – THAT the Board now rise and report on the “In 

Camera” Session and resume the regular Board meeting.] 

 
15. Adjournment  

 
[Motion #2024. – THAT the meeting be adjourned] 

 

  



 

4 
 

 
CORRESPONDENCE LIST for April 15, 2024 

 
 

6a.01.01 
CBC, December 15, 2023, article entitled 2 Experts Explain Why Libraries Can 

Become Cybercrime Targets, written by Andrew Lupton 
(copy) 

6a.02.01 

CBC.ca, February 27, 2024, article entitled 1 Million Books and 4 Months Later, 

Toronto’s Library Recovers from a Cyberattack, written by Sarah Bridge and Anya 

Zoledziowski 

(copy) 

6a.03.01 
Municipal World, March 2024, article entitled Cyber Security Best Practices to 

Support Local Governments, written by Eugene Ng 
(copy) 

6a.04.01 
Municipal World, January 2021, article entitled  Critical Decision Making During a 

Cybersecurity Attack, written by Mark Hoffman 
(copy) 

6a.05.01 

Municipal World, MW Shares Podcast entitled Cybersecurity and Local 

Government – Part 1 with Henry Awere 

Cybersecurity and local government, Part 1 - Henry Awere - Municipal World 

(link) 

6a.06.01 
Urban Libraries Council, April 2024, Case Study: Martin Luther King Jr. Memorial 

Library, Washington, DC – Library Foot Traffic and Downtown Economic Vitality 
(copy) 

6a.07.01 

International Federation of Library Associations and Institutions (IFLA), IFLA Trend 

Report Update 2023 – Realising Libraries’ Potential as Partners for Development, 

Based on the Contributions of: Mohd Ismail Abdin, Vivian Amponsah, Evie Cordell, 

Bryan Boy Cortez, Zoe Dunlop, Lyudmila Dyadyk, Xiaofang Zhang 

(copy) 

https://www.municipalworld.com/podcasts/cybersecurity-and-local-government-part-1-henry-awere/


1 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for March 18, 2024 

INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD  
MEETING MINUTES  

Monday, March 18, 2024 – 7:00 p.m.  
Lakeshore Library – Community Room 

In Attendance: Anne Smith, Rob Nicol, Councillor Jennifer Richardson, 
Councillor Robert Saunders, Barb Baguley, Sue Bennett, 
Rhonda Flanagan, Cynthia Gordon 

Staff in Attendance: Erin Scuccimarri, Jennifer Miyasaki, Mandy Pethick 

Regrets: Raj Grover 

1. CALL TO ORDER, WELCOME AND LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

 The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m.

 The Board Chair delivered the Land Acknowledgement Statement.

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Motion #2024.18 
Moved by:  Jennifer Richardson 
Seconded by: Rhonda Flanagan 

THAT the agenda of the March 18, 2024, meeting be approved as presented and 
amended. 

CARRIED. 

3. DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY INTEREST
There were no disclosures of pecuniary interest.

4. DELEGATIONS TO THE BOARD
There were no delegations

CONSENT AGENDA 
5. Approval of Previous Minutes

6. Correspondence

7. Reports for Information

 CEO Report
o The CEO highlighted a few of the well attended events (Winter

Weekends; Spark Fundraiser)
o Mandy Pethick provided an overview of the Evergreen update

5a.01.01



2 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for March 18, 2024 
 

 

 Municipal Council Report 
o No additions  

 Library Board Report 
o Roundtable of events attended by Board and Staff  

o SHE-roes event 
o Ramadan celebration 
o Polar Bear Plunge for RVH 
o Youth Darts and Bingo at Lion’s Club 
o Powwow at Georgian College 
o Making Change  

 
Committee Updates: 

 Finance Committee Meeting 
o Deferred to section 8b – report for discussion 

 Fundraising Committee 
Deferred to section 8c – report for discussion 

 Truth & Reconciliation Committee 
o Committee met on March 13; continue to work on the Land 

Acknowledgement Statement to include the Treaties and updated 
language 

 Health & Safety Update 
o JHSC Minutes included in package; no other updates 

 
Motion #2024.19 
 Moved by:   Cynthia Gordon 
 Seconded by: Rob Nicol 
 
 THAT the consent agenda items 5a.01.01 to 7e.01.01, and the recommendations 

contained therein be approved as presented. 
CARRIED. 

 
AGENDA 

 
8. REPORTS FOR ACTION 

 
a) Staff Report LIB-04-2024 Year End CEO Report 

 
Motion #2024.20 

Moved by:  Sue Bennett   
Seconded by: Cynthia Gordon 

 
THAT the Staff Report LIB-04-2024 Year End CEO Report be received for 
information. 

CARRIED. 
 

b) Staff Report LIB-05-2024 2023 Year End Financial Results (Draft)  



3 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for March 18, 2024 
 

 

o The CEO confirmed that we had a positive variance at the end of 2023 
o Recommend carrying over the surplus to the 2024 operating budget 

after financial statements have officially been reviewed by the external 
auditors 

 
Motion #2024.21 

Moved by:  Barb Baguley   
Seconded by: Rob Saunders 

 
THAT the Committee Report LIB-05-2024 regarding the 2023 Year-End Financial 
Results dated March 18, 2024 be received, and 
 
THAT the 2023 unspent library donations in the amount of $4592.52 be allocated 
to the Library’s Donation Reserve Account. 

CARRIED. 
 

c) Staff Report LIB-06-2024 Spark Fundraising Event  
 
 

Motion #2024.22 
Moved by:  Rhonda Flanagan   
Seconded by: Jennifer Richardson 

 
THAT the Staff Report LIB-06-2024 Spark Fundraising Event Final Report be 
received for information as presented and amended. 

CARRIED. 
 
 

9. BUSINESS ARISING 
a) 2022 Operating Surplus 

 
Motion #2024.23 

Moved by:  Sue Bennett   
Seconded by: Rob Saunders 

 
THAT the Board repeal Motion #2023.65, approved September 18, 2023; and  
FURTHER THAT, the 2022 operating surplus in the amount of $71,293.00 be 
moved to the Library Computer Reserves account. 

CARRIED. 
 
10.      POLICY  

a)  EMPLOYMENT – Education, Training & Development Policy #E-2024-07 

b) OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Piano Use Policy #2024-08 

c) OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Membership & Borrowing Policy #2024-

09 



4 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for March 18, 2024 
 

 

(copy & motion) 
 

Motion #2024.24 
Moved by:  Barb Baguley   
Seconded by: Cynthia Gordon 
 

THAT the EMPLOYMENT – Education, Training & Development Policy #E-

2024-07;  the OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Piano Use Policy #2024-08;  

the OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Membership & Borrowing Policy #2024-

09 be approved as presented. 

CARRIED. 

11. STRATEGIC ISSUES 
 There were no Strategic Issues to discuss this month. 

 
12.  NEW BUSINESS 

No new business 
 

13. COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
a) Calendar of Events 

o Link to Library offerings was provided in the agenda. 
 

14. IN CAMERA  
 a)  Consideration of a resolution to hold an “In Camera” Committee of the 

Whole meeting as provided for under the Municipal Act, 2001, as 
amended, the Public Libraries Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P.44, and the Library 
Board’s Procedural By-Law Policy# B-2023-03. 

 
Motion #2024.25 

Moved by:  Rob Nicol 
Seconded by:  Rhonda FLanagan 
 

THAT the Board holds a “Closed Session” Committee of the Whole meeting as provided 
for by the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended, the Public Libraries Act, R.S.O. c. P.44, 
and the Board’s Procedural By-Law Policy #B-2023-03 to deal with: 
 

a) advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications 
necessary for that purpose. 

CARRIED. 
 
Motion #2024.26 

Moved by:  Jennifer Richardson 
Seconded by: Rhonda Flanagan 

THAT the Board now rise and report on the In Camera session and resume the regular 
Board meeting.  



5 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for March 18, 2024 
 

 

CARRIED. 
 
 

15.   ADJOURNMENT 
Motion #2024.27 

  Moved by:  Barb Baguley 
  

THAT the meeting be adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 
CARRIED. 

 
 
 
 

DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 
 

The next Library Board meeting will be held on 
Monday, April 15, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. 

Innisfil Public Library & ideaLAB – Lakeshore Branch – Community Room 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________  ________________________________ 
Anne Smith, Board Chair    Erin Scuccimarri, Secretary 



�������������	
������	���
������
��������������������
����� 6a.01.01











�����������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������!�"#"�$�%�

���&����%%%'���'�����%������������������������(�������(�����%���(��������(�')��
��� ����

*�+,--,./�0..12�3/4�5�+./672�-3689:�;.9./6.<2-,0939=�98>.?892�@9.+�3�>=0893663>1 6a.02.01



�����������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������!�"#"�$�%�

���&����%%%'���'�����%������������������������(�������(�����%���(��������(�')��
��� ����



�����������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������!�"#"�$�%�

���&����%%%'���'�����%������������������������(�������(�����%���(��������(�')��
��� *���



�����������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������!�"#"�$�%�

���&����%%%'���'�����%������������������������(�������(�����%���(��������(�')��
��� ����



�����������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������!�"#"�$�%�

���&����%%%'���'�����%������������������������(�������(�����%���(��������(�')��
��� *���



�����������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������!�"#"�$�%�

���&����%%%'���'�����%������������������������(�������(�����%���(��������(�')��
��� 
���



�����������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������!�"#"�$�%�

���&����%%%'���'�����%������������������������(�������(�����%���(��������(�')��
��� )���



�����������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������!�"#"�$�%�

���&����%%%'���'�����%������������������������(�������(�����%���(��������(�')��
��� *���



�����������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������!�"#"�$�%�

���&����%%%'���'�����%������������������������(�������(�����%���(��������(�')��
��� ����



�����������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������!�"#"�$�%�

���&����%%%'���'�����%������������������������(�������(�����%���(��������(�')��
��� �	���



�����������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������!�"#"�$�%�

���&����%%%'���'�����%������������������������(�������(�����%���(��������(�')��
��� �����



���������	�
������������
��������	�����������������������������������	��������� �!"#�$%$&

'�()*+,- �./!0/!01�2��2���340��0��������5�6"��� �20�72����5��8292� :��;�2!24 :�<��� �!"�<�40������!"1 �.���292� :��� ��=0�1 �20� !�0���1;�2!24 :2�2��/�>"���:00.2�9� ����� ��92!�4�20�2�2��#�!�������!;�2��� ���4�2? !��7���2����2=2��� �� �4�21 ���=0!;��=0��1;�2!24 :�0�9 �2@ �20���0?����"����A���"�����0�=2?���� ��/� ���:0! :�90?���1�����" ?��:212�����;�9�����0�2�?����2���292� :��� ��=0�1 �20�/�B;��2��2����2::!�2�2! :��0�4�0��!������2�2?��� � �=�01�!����� �� !.�� �����!;�2������ !"��/�6"��=0::072�9�����4� !�2!���! ��"�:4�4�0��!���0;��0�9 �2@ �20�C����!"�0:09�#�� � #� ���2�=0�1 �20��=�01��"�� ��/

2��6�!"�0:09�

��2? !��D�E00.2����0:2!�FGHI

6a.03.01



������������	
�����������	��
�������������������� !��"#"$���!��%!��!��%�%��!����!�&!�'���!�����&��
����!���'��
�!���!����(%�	!$%(%�!��)���%����!��(��)!����!�������%�!*)!����'%�!��!)���!*���%��!����%��%�!���!�%������'%���!���%������!��%!���%���!�������%�!���!)���!�'���!�����&��
����!����(%�	!+��!���!�%��)��!�%��&)!��%!��%��!)��!���!���%!��!
�'��%!��%!����!�������%�!���!������'!�%��%������')	,���-./�!0123"4-5!6-.7� 8-#"9������)!&��
%�����!��(%!*%%�!�%(%���%�!��!�������!�)*%�!�%����)!������%�!��������'��:�����	!+�%�%!&��
%�����!���(�%!���������!&��!��%!�%�'�;!
��%
%������;!���
���'%
%��!�&!�)*%�!�%����)!���'��
�	!+�%)!���!����!*%!�����
:%�!��!
%%�!��%!��<�%�%<��%
%���!�&!)���!�����!'�(%��
%��	
=�(��)!>!?���%�!=���)



��������	�
	������������������������������������������ �������!�����"����������������#���$�����%�&���������� ������������#���������������������#"��������"���������������� ����������"����������#�"����"�����%�'��������#������!()��� ��������� ��������)����"����#����������������������#����������������#���$�������� ������ ���*��������%'��������")�������������������#���� �� ����*"���"�����������#����+����"��������#���������%�,  ��������"-������ �����)����)��#���������#���#���������������#��������#���%�&�������#��������������!����"����������#���������.�� ������ �������������*�����������*��*����")��������!�%���/��0�1�2�3���4�����0�5	�6�#���������������������� ����*"��� ���������$������������������*�"��������������������*��������%�7��+��8�+�������������������� ����*"�"������#���$�����.�����+��8�+���-�������� �����)��������������*�������������� �%�,*��������� ����*���������������������������-�����������������������9:���	���5�;5
�<�5	�1��=�5����3�5,������ ���������������������������"����**�������"������� �����������"�)������������")�������!�%�>��� �������������������*��������������$��#�������������*����")��������!-��������# ���#��-��� ��������#������������?���!�"��*����������� ����������%
�����+��������)���������� ����!�@ ����������������"���������@ �����������������������������������������)���������@

������"�A�7��!���������"



������������	
�����������	��
�������������������� �!�"#$%&"'$("'#!$)*+&,&-��&"&#./��0$�����$1�23��
3���$��3$4���1$��3$��
3$����$��$�1���$�����4��
����$���3��3�	$5�$
�063$�3��4��$��$�����6����3$���$���3�$
������$��1��7�����$���8�3�3$�����3�����$���$�3��$�3���3$��3$����$�4$0���$�063�$�3����0$
3����3�	$8�30$�������2�3$��
��3�3��23$����3����$�1����$�3�$���$3���6���3�$���3���	9�:#$"'#$;#<"$="#-.>
��40$��3$���3�$�4$0���$�063�$�3����0$���1��
$���$/?@$A1���B�$C063�$D3����0$���@�2��0$�3�
	$E��$
���1���	��$���������
���1���	����$��$6���$�$4�33$�����������$��$�3���
��3$�6���$�063�$�3����0$
3����3�	$$FGH$FIJKLKMNO$GPQOR$STULIVKWU$NJR$SXXUJVKNOX$YOIX$FUZ[UQX\$]��$
1��$����$63$��3�3��3�$�3̂�33$_���3�B�$�����3�$C063�$��������$2���$4��$�3����1$1�23��
3��$���$�����0$�����������������	
�����������	��
������3���063�̀��������̀2���̀4��̀�3����1̀1�23��
3��̀���̀

���3��3$���3��$��3��13��3a ��3��3$�$b���$�3����0$��3������$�3���3$�DcC�a

@�2��0$d$C���3�$@���0



���������	
��������������
�������������������
�����	����� ���	������!	�	�	�"�#$%�&�'�()�'*��+$%�',$#(-./.0�������������
����	����	���1�����2��333�4��
�
�	�3 ����� 4�	��
�����./.0�������������
����	����	���5 6�
��
�7�� �������������
������	4���	41�����2��333�4��
�
�	�3 ����� 4�	��
�������
��
�7�� �������������
������	4���	4�5 !�
�
�	�����
�
 ��4	8
�7����
�7�	�����������
���	��	�81�����2��333�4��
�
�	�3 ����� 4���	������� �����
�
�	�����
�
 ��4	8
�7�����������
���	��	�8�5 !���������
���	���� �	��7 9���4����1�	���:�3
���;�����<3���1�����2��333�4��
�
�	�3 ����� 4�� ��	��������������
���	���� �	��7 9���4�����	���:�������	3����5=>?@�A@BCD E���<���F�	�����E� �
���1�����2��333�4��
�
�	�3 ����� 4���	������� �
���GHI�JKLKMNO�PQKOJKRL�SHJTU�SNR�MVNRUWHVX�XQRKYSKZNO�HZTVNMKHRU1�����2��333�4��
�
�	�3 ����� 4���	������� �����	��� �4�4��
�
�	�� ���	�
 ����������������[KOO�CTKJ�
��\���� � 7�
��
9	���]�!  8
���� �
��



���������	
������������	���������
��
�������������������������������������� �!

"�#$%&'( �)*+,*+,-./�0/,�12�033-0�24�2�53�+��62�7,�-,�3�24�����835�.��0�5/24,�2��3�./�7���,�2���,243��-��/+/9�:/2�24�2�4�0��33��;/+2/-/<3.������+��3�03+��/2���22�+)*�=�)/�7�-�223�0�5,�03��0�+4��350�/23-0/�;��/��:��7,�,��2,�0���24�2�243�-��/+/9�:/2��>4�.��,�,243��+4,/+3?�24���2,�9��������0,-�2,732�243/��0�023-0���+)*@��3�03+��/2���309,�03�9�,2,+,:0�2�9/+�::��/�+:�.3��32533��03;3����.�! �)3��.3+/0/,�0*A,53;3���243�3���3�25,�+�/2/+�:�.3+/0/,�0�24�2��,���,�7��/<�2/,��5,�:.�:/)3:��8�+3�.��/�7��+��3�03+��/2���22�+)*B�+4�3C�-9:3��3:,5�,883�0���.38��:2�9,0/2/,��0,:3:��2,�.3-,�02��23�4,5�243�9�,+300�5,�)0*1�./;/.��:�.38��:2�9,0/2/,�0�-���./883�*

/��1�8��02��+2��3��D3+4�,:,7�

E�/;�+��F�@,,)/30�E,:/+�GHIJ

6a.04.01



������������	
�����������	��
��������������������� !"!#$�%&'�(!))��#*�+,��-,$"#./0�������1�1�1����������1����
�������1��1����������121�3��1��������������1���4�����121�3��351��161���1	�7�����1�������1���4����������18��1�9�����1���1���������������8��1����������3��������
����1�����51��
1��������51�����1�1�����������	�0����
1������1�1�
����51����
�1���:�5���1������1����
�21���1���:��;��������������3�:��������
	�<1�1���1���
1�����1������������
:�������:1�3�����������=�����351���������1����2�1�	�>�9��
��������������1���������1�����1�9���1���1��21�����3�:������
	�=����11��������1�����������
��1����1�4�����1����	? @����4���1������
��1
�������1������1�5�1����1��������5�����41�3���������1��4�3���1
���311�A�>4���1�1�����5����1�����������5�����41�38���1��1�����
�3�51����1�������441�1����121�	? @����4���1�1�������1�5�1�12�1��1��������������1�����1�9�����
������3�������������511�����1�A�@����4���1�����1�������1������
��1��4���1�����1����������������4���1������
�1
���A�@�����������:1�3�����1���1��21A? >4�3��������1��21����1�����1���3��1
��3����1�48�3���������51��1�����1�3������3���1������
	B��������4�3����1�1����5�1�����1��21���������
���
�1�����������4��
�A�@�������������:1�3������������5������3�:���1������
A?
C�2��3�D�E���1��C���3



���������������	
�������������������������������������������������	�������
�����������������������������
��
�����������
��������������������������������������
����	���	������������������������������������� ! "#�$%&�'(")*+��")��#,-,��*-.�#/"0��1�#23���������������
��4������	�����5����4
���������5�����	����������5�	��������	�����������5�5����6����������������	�������7�������������������������5����������������������8��5�������������9��������������:�������������
����������������������5���;���������6�����5������5�5����6���������������������	:�����������������6��������������������<�	<���������������4���;����4������	������

��
������	�����5�����8���������	�������6���	<6���	:���������=���4���	�6�	��
��������������������������5��������������
���������������������>���������	����
���������6:����5��������	�������������8������������������6�������8��	��������6������5�5��5���6������������6���?
��������:���
�����5������������������6�����������������=�����5��	��������5�������������5�����������������������	��@�6�������������������	����	��������	�����	���������5���5������������	��������A�����������������������5���������������
����
��
�����������8��6�����	���B�������������������������������
��������6�������������������8��6�CAD 	���
���������8��5���5����������5����������
��
�������AD ��������8����������������
����������	�������������������	AD �������������������������������������:�������������A���D ������������������������������������������6�������

����:�����������
�����:����������5����:���D

�����	�E����8��������	



������������	
�����������	��
�������������������� !"#!$#%#&% '()*!#+,,-$%./#!$#012�-"�.*- !13�4�4#��4#45�
��4�#�6#��4#�7�4#�6#8�4�����#��#94#�����4�4�#�#�794��4����7#�4�����4�����	#3��#4��9�4�#��4#�4��4����#�4�
#��#���4������#��4�#������#946��4#��4#����#���������#:;4�#��4
#��4#���������7#��#����#6��
#�#������#�6#���4�:��	<�#���#��7#�4�����4#����=#�#
���#94#������4�	#<#������4#454���4#���4��>�4���#��4#������4��6#��4#?794�#@4�����4#A���#��#�44#���#��47#�����#����7#�#�#�4��>�64#��4����	3�4�4#��4#
��7#94�46��#��#��7�:#���#�#������4�#��������#����#:;4�#�����4�����#��#��4�7�4�����#����#7���#�4�
#���#6��4#����:#�#�794�#������	#3�4#466���#7��#���#���#���#���#��7�;�4���#����#��4#����	##BCD#BEFGHGIJK#CLMKN#OFPGNQM#JFN#RSQHETGUQ#BQVWQMPX#Y��#
:��#����#94#��4�4��4�#�#��4#6���;4����#�6#���#�����4#������������	
�����������	��
������4����4>7��>�4��7>6��>�>�794�>��>������#��#�#Z4��#[474�\�#�����4�#3�4#�4���7#�6#
������#�794��4����7#]#94#��4���4�������������	
�����������	��
������4����4>�4���7>�6>
������>�794��4����7>94>��4>���4���	#̂��4#����#7��#���#���#���4��#��4#��
��4�4#����4����#�6#����#�����4�������������	
�����������	��
������4���#����#
��4�#6��
#7���#
4
94����#����9����������������	
�����������	��
�
7>���������	 A�;��7#_#?���4�#A���7



���������	�
���������������������������������������������������������������������� �����!��"�#$��������%������������������&��������������������������������'&�������(���)�"����'&��������������"��"��&�� �������&��*����������(+,-�.,/��,0�1�2,�	�.,�3�-045"�6��7��*�����"��8�����9�������"�����*��������:��������;"��&�<==!!!(������&� !�� �(���=&������=!"��>���*���>�"�>������>���>��"��>��*>�������>:��������=?@ 5� �����A��A"��B�  <�C�&������� �������%���������&� � ������;"��&�<==!!!(������&� !�� �(���=&������=!� ����>��>�"�>"�  >�>&������� >�����>%��>��>����&� > ������=?@ D������<�A"��E�� �F� ����%������������������� ;"��&�<==!!!(������&� !�� �(���=&������= ������>�"�>��� >*� ��>�%>�>�����>���>������ =?@GHIJ�KJLMN O���C  �P�������O�������;"��&�<==!!!(������&� !�� �(���=%������>�������=?MQRSTUVTUW�XYZT[TR\;"��&�<==!!!(������&� !�� �(���=%������>�����=���"��)���>���� ���=?�������������]T̂SQ[[Q�]_WWTỲQ����A��"�� �����A����&��������

���*����a����)������ ���



C A S E  S T U D Y :  
MARTIN LUTHER K ING JR.  MEMORIAL
LIBRARY,  WASHINGTON,  DC 

HOW LIBRARY VISITS CREATE
DAYTIME FOOT TRAFFIC AND
PROMOTE ECONOMIC VITALITY IN
DOWNTOWNS 

CASE
STUDY

APRIL 2024

6a.06.01



U R B A N  L I B R A R I E S  C O U N C I L P A G E  2

In the four years since the COVID-19 pandemic began, downtowns are still on a
trajectory of recovery. For many cities, the biggest gaps between pre- and post-
pandemic numbers are among weekday office workers. Employers are maintaining
hybrid or remote-capable work models, and less office space is being used daily. Fewer
weekday office workers are not generating as much foot traffic and the resulting
economic activity that contributes to a thriving daytime population in downtown areas. 

With weekly office occupancy still hovering around 50% across major metropolitan
regions in the U.S., urban areas (especially downtowns with high concentrations of office
use) must look to alternate attractions to sustain vitality, foot traffic and economic
activity during weekdays. 
 
In Spring 2023, the Urban Libraries Council published a report — Libraries as Spaces for
Innovation and Productivity — that explores the importance of congregation in a post-
pandemic world. It looked at the role of libraries as reliable structures, attractions and
prime choices for visits even as we experience a great upheaval of spaces in which
people prioritize spending time. Libraries with a downtown location historically
contribute a significant amount of steady foot traffic and daytime population and serve
as trip attractions based on the number of daily, weekly and monthly users tracked by
libraries. 
 
To support the primary recommendation from that report — the promotion of libraries
as hubs for congregation, trip attractors and investors of post-pandemic economic
activity — ULC sought out additional data to advance this thesis. 

INTRODUCTION

Libraries have the unique opportunity to meet the growing
demand for flexible workspaces and quality interactions in the
third-place. Libraries as Spaces for Innovation and Productivity
explores the importance of libraries as places of congregation
in a post-pandemic world and offers recommendations of ways
the value of libraries as spaces for innovation and productivity
can be emphasized.

Published May 2023

C A S E  S T U D Y :  L I B R A R Y  F O O T  T R A F F I C  A N D  D O W N T O W N  E C O N O M I C  V I T A L I T Y

https://www.kastle.com/safety-wellness/getting-america-back-to-work/
https://www.urbanlibraries.org/files/Libraries-as-spaces-for-innovation-and-productivity_5.25.2.pdf?utm_source=website&utm_medium=file_download&utm_campaign=white_paper
https://www.urbanlibraries.org/files/Libraries-as-spaces-for-innovation-and-productivity_5.25.2.pdf?utm_source=website&utm_medium=file_download&utm_campaign=white_paper
https://www.urbanlibraries.org/files/Libraries-as-spaces-for-innovation-and-productivity_5.25.2.pdf?utm_source=website&utm_medium=file_download&utm_campaign=white_paper


U R B A N  L I B R A R I E S  C O U N C I L P A G E  3

In early 2024, ULC initiated a partnership with Placer.ai, a location analytics technology
company, to help libraries implement stronger impact evaluation practices around foot
traffic data. Using the Placer.ai advanced location analytics platform, which describes
physical locations, the people and businesses that interact with them and the markets
they inhabit, ULC is examining how libraries are influencing visits to downtown areas and
are an economic driver for cities. 
 
We are starting this research in ULC’s backyard: Washington, DC.  
 
The central location of the DC Public Library (DCPL) is just a 10-minute walk from the
ULC offices. The Martin Luther King, Jr. Memorial Library sits within the Downtown DC
Business Improvement Districts (BID), which also borders the Golden Triangle BID in DC.
District leaders use these two BIDs to set the boundaries of downtown in their recent
economic development action plan. While the West End DCPL branch sits just at the
western edge of the downtown area, we are specifically looking at the central library
location for this analysis. 

ABOUT THE RESEARCH

The District of Columbia Public Library was created by
an act of Congress in 1896 “to furnish books and other
printed matter and information service convenient to
the homes and offices of all residents of the District.” In
1972, a new central library, designed by Mies van der
Rohe, opened down the street from its original Andrew
Carnegie-funded location. It was designated a historic
landmark in 2007 and underwent a modernization effort
from 2017 to 2020. The $211 million update positions
the central library as a center of activity for the
downtown area. 

Current Operating Hours: 9:30 a.m. – 9:00 p.m. (M-Th); 
9:30 a.m. – 5:30 p.m. (F, Sat); 1:00 – 5:00 p.m. (Sun) 
Address: 901 G St. NW, Washington, DC 20001 
Executive Director: Richard Reyes-Gavilán 
Number of DCPL Branches: 26 
FY23 Operating Budget: $77M 

ABOUT THE MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR.
MEMORIAL LIBRARY 

C A S E  S T U D Y :  L I B R A R Y  F O O T  T R A F F I C  A N D  D O W N T O W N  E C O N O M I C  V I T A L I T Y

https://www.urbanlibraries.org/initiatives/research-and-data/ulc-and-placer-ai
https://www.reimaginedowntowndc.com/


CASE STUDY

Like most major cities in the U.S.,
Washington DC’s downtown is seeing
reduced economic activity since the
pandemic. This is owed to a handful of
factors in the region, including a level of
remote work more than twice the national
average, according to the DC Policy Center.  
 
Despite these trends, the Martin Luther
King, Jr. Memorial Library (MLK Library) is
attracting people to the downtown area.  

Using Placer.ai data, ULC analyzed the trip
attraction performance of visitors to the
MLK Library in 2023 and then to other
locations downtown. According to
Placer.ai’s location analytics, the MLK
Library attracted over 650,000 visits in
2023 and had over 350,000 unique visitors.
On average, the library had 1,850 initial
trips and the average visitor spent nearly
two hours there. 

U R B A N  L I B R A R I E S  C O U N C I L P A G E  4

While a large percentage of visits to the
MLK Library in 2023 were by individuals
coming from a home or residence to the
library and eventually back there, many
visitors went to another downtown location
or elsewhere in the DC area after visiting
the library. Placer.ai estimated that of the
195,000 post-library trips to somewhere
other than home, 36% (74,900 trips) of
visitors stayed in downtown DC. 

36%
of post-library
visits in 2023
remained in

downtown DC

C A S E  S T U D Y :  L I B R A R Y  F O O T  T R A F F I C  A N D  D O W N T O W N  E C O N O M I C  V I T A L I T Y

https://www.dcpolicycenter.org/publications/2023-business-under-fiscal-distress/


Defined types of post-library visits by the Placer.ai platform include
Stadiums/Arena/Athletic Fields such as the nearby Capital One Arena; Hotels & Casinos
such as the numerous lodging options in the area; or one of the nearly 150 restaurants
downtown. 

U R B A N  L I B R A R I E S  C O U N C I L P A G E  5

C A S E  S T U D Y :  L I B R A R Y  F O O T  T R A F F I C  A N D  D O W N T O W N  E C O N O M I C  V I T A L I T Y



Overall, DCPL saw robust attendance across its impactful programming schedule
throughout 2023, continuing its commitment to serving the District. From story times to
author talks, book clubs, computer courses, events and community meetings, the library
system reported it had more than 3 million visits across its 26 locations last year. 

U R B A N  L I B R A R I E S  C O U N C I L P A G E  6

C A S E  S T U D Y :  L I B R A R Y  F O O T  T R A F F I C  A N D  D O W N T O W N  E C O N O M I C  V I T A L I T Y

https://www.dclibrary.org/news/more-3-million-visits-exhibits-programs-and-cafe-draw-people-dc-public-library


EVENT STUDY: ART ALL NIGHT 

One of the events with the highest trip
attraction numbers to the MLK Library in a
single day in 2023 was Art All Night. This
city-wide celebration of arts, culture, food
and nightlife had special activations in all
eight wards of the city. The MLK Library
hosted a block party on September 30 that
featured live Go-Go music acts, culinary
experiences, film screenings and much
more. According to Placer.ai analytics, the
2023 Art All Night block party attracted
over 6,500 visitors from across DC,
Maryland and Virginia to the MLK Library.

U R B A N  L I B R A R I E S  C O U N C I L P A G E  7

C A S E  S T U D Y :  L I B R A R Y  F O O T  T R A F F I C  A N D  D O W N T O W N  E C O N O M I C  V I T A L I T Y

https://dclibrary.libnet.info/event/9197946


While venues such as sport arenas, park spaces and cultural facilities are often top of
mind when it comes to popular city trip attractions, the library should be viewed no
differently. As ULC’s emerging research indicates, when a central library like
Washington DC’s MLK Library invests in its purpose to be a place of gathering,
convention and congregation, it can play a significant role in downtown activation
plans. This case study offers just one example of the potential for libraries to serve as
major factors in attracting steady population and foot traffic in urban cores and
downtowns.     
 
Beyond programming to attract visitors, libraries are proven hubs of entrepreneurship.
Libraries serve as incubators that provide new businesses with resources, training and
the support needed for growth and success. The forthcoming release of a revised ULC
Business Value Calculator will allow library systems to capture the economic impact
associated with patrons accessing industry analysis and reporting resources, utilizing
maker or coworking spaces, and taking advantage of business development workshops
and one-to-one consultations with local partners. 
 
As ULC continues this research, we will examine other public libraries in cities with
downtown activation plans and utilize Placer.ai data to understand foot traffic to and
from these critical public institutions. When we couple this location analysis with
information provided by member libraries, such as through the Business Value
Calculator, we intend to capture a stronger understanding of how libraries contribute to
the economic vitality of their cities. 

U R B A N  L I B R A R I E S  C O U N C I L P A G E  8

CONCLUSION

ULC would like to acknowledge and thank DC Public Library and 
Placer.ai Labs for their contributions to this case study.

C A S E  S T U D Y :  L I B R A R Y  F O O T  T R A F F I C  A N D  D O W N T O W N  E C O N O M I C  V I T A L I T Y

https://www.urbanlibraries.org/initiatives/workforce-economic-development/business-value-calculator
https://www.urbanlibraries.org/initiatives/workforce-economic-development/business-value-calculator


������������������������������������������ ���!�"����#���$%&'(�)*�+,'�-)*+./01+/)*&�)23�4),(�5&6%/7�80(/*9�:/;/%*�86<)*&%,9�=;/'�>).('779$.?%*�$)?�>).+'@9�A)B�C1*7)<9�D?1(6/7%�C?%(?E9F/%)2%*G�A,%*G5HI5JKLI�MNO4�LK=PQRSTQRUVQP

6a.07.01



���������	
����������
����	
�������������������������
����������� !�"#$%&%#'!�()� *'�+"($&"�! &+'�&),�*'"�!� *'-�,'.'"(�/0'�&%'� *'�+"($&"�.(#1'�&),� *'�"&%+'! �$%&#)!� %�! �(2� *'�"#$%&%3�&),�#)2(%-& #()�%(2'!!#()4�5# *�&)�&1 #.'�)' 5(%6�(2�-(%'� *&)�74899�:'-$'%!�;�"'&,#)+�#)! # � #()!�&),�"&3'%!�#)� *'�"#$%&%3�2#'",�;�#)�(.'%�7<9�1(�) %#'!4�&),�5'""='! &$"#!*',�%'"& #()!�5# *� *'�>?&),�( *'%�#) '%)& #()&"�(%+&)#!& #()!/@(+' *'%�5# *�(�%�:'-$'%!�5'�5(%6� (�!' � *'��%(2'!!#()&"�&+'),&�&),�,'.'"(��! &),&%,!#)�"#$%&%3�!'%.#1'��%(.#!#()4� (�#-�%(.'�&11'!!� (�#)2(%-& #()�&),�1�" �%&"�*'%# &+'%'!(�%1'!4�&),� (��"&1'� *#!�5(%6�& � *'�*'&% �(2�"(1&"4�)& #()&"�&),�+"($&"��("#1#'!/�A�����B�������	
�C��D�����E�
���F
G��HI"#.#'%�J%'�#)=�'$"(),4�J*&#%-&)��) '%)' �J(%�(%& #()�2(%��!!#+)',�?&-'!�&),?�-$'%!�K�J�??L�� ="&%+'��,.#!(%3�J(--#  ''K���JL�)%#'  '�M! '%*�3!')4�JMI4��!!(1#& #()�2(%N%(+%'!!#.'�J(--�)#1& #()!�K�NJLO#.#)&��%&�=:'#+!4�N%(2'!!(%4�>)#.'%!# P�,�N&%#!����Q�R(%$())'�?(�.'""':'"#!!&�S%'++4�N%#)1#�&"��).'! #+& (%4��) '"J') '%�2(%�R(1#&"�J(-�� #)+T(*)�U(�+* ()4�N%(2'!!(%#&"��'""(54�J') %'�2(%R %& '+#1�M1()(-#1�R �,#'!4�V#1 (%#&>)#.'%!# 3O'$(%&*�T&1($!4�O#%'1 (%4�S"($&"��#$%&%#'!4�W#""�X:'"#),&�S& '!��(�),& #():&%#P-'�T&--'4�JMI4�R�( �I)'�S"($&"R("� #()!T&)#!�Y&%6"#)!4��!!#! &) �O#%'1 (%�S')'%&"�2(%J(--�)#1& #()�&),��)2(%-& #()4�>?MRJI�"'Z&),%(�N#!&) 34�N%(2'!!(%4�?& #()&"�� ()(-(�!�>)#.'%!# 3�(2�:'[#1(�''�\&#)#'4�O#%'1 (%4��) '%)' �X��-'%#1&)��#2'N%(Z'1 4�N'5�\'!'&%1*�J') '%]Y& '�\�!!'""4�N%'!') '%4�WWJ�J"#16�I)"#)'

�),%'&!�R1*"'#1*'%4�O#%'1 (%�2(%�M,�1& #()4I%+&)#!& #()�2(%�M1()(-#1�J((�'%& #()�&),O'.'"(�-') �KIMJOLR�)'' �R#)+*�@�"#4��(�),'%�&),�JMI4�O& &0#),� ,�%',�R #'"(54�VN̂O'&)�(2��#$%&%#'!4��-'%#1&)N�$"#1�>)#.'%!# 3�R3! '-�%',�.()��(*-&))4��'+&"�O#%'1 (%4�J(�3%#+* 4S((+"'��)1/]�(�#!�_&1*&%#""&4�J(=2(�),'%4�S"($&"��) '""#+') J(--�)# 3��(%�-]J(--') #)+�#)�&��'%!()&"�1&�&1# 3@%'),�\'�(% ���,& '!�&%'�&.&#"&$"'�2(%9̀7a4�̀97b4�̀97c4��̀97d�&),�̀9̀7/��""�&%'�&.&#"&$"'()� *'�@%'),�\'�(% �5'$!# 'Q�*  �!Q̂̂ %'),!/#2"&/(%+̂/
�(%��%'!!�')e�#%#'!�&),�2�% *'%�#)2(%-& #()��"'&!'1() &1 Q�R '�*')�03$'%4������N("#13�&),��,.(1&13:&)&+'%�K! '�*')/53$'%f#2"&/(%+Lg



���������	
���������	�������������������������
���
������������	��������
���������
	���������������
�
	��������������	������������	���������	���
	������������� �������������
�	���������	���������������
	�������������������	�����	�����
��
����
��	�������������	�����������
�������!����������������������	����������������"���������	����	���������
��	����
���	��	����	��	� ���
		�	�
����������	����
���	 �����
���	 ����
�� ��������	�
����	��
	�����	������
����
	�����
���	��������	������!���������������������� �����
�����������������������������
�������	����	�������#����������	������������	���$����
��	������
����������
���	������� ����
���	
����
	��������	���������	��	��������������������
���
	��	����
���	����������	
������	���������������	
�������� ���������
��
	�������
�
�
	���	����
���	��������
����������� ���
���
	��������	 ��	�����	��
���������
����
	������
���������������������	�����	�������� ���������
�����
	����������	�����
�����%����&��	�����
�������	������	���
����
	��&������	���������������	 ���	��	���	�	����������������	����
	���������������������
���������

�������
	�
���������	���	��������	����������������'����	������
������(����
��� �������
����	��	��� ������������ �
��
���
���	�����	��'�
�
�
�����'��������������	�����������	��������
�������� �
	�����	��
�!�	�����������	
���
��	�����������
���������������	!�	��
�������
����	��������������������
����������
����������� ������
������
��������	���	���������� ��������������
���������������������	�������
������������������� �
	�����
����	������
!�����
����������� ������
���
�����������	����	����	��������
�����������	��������	��������
���	�����������	���	����
���	�
	���
���)���	����
������������������������	���������*��
���������
	���
	���
�����
������
��������!��������������������	��� �	�����! �����
����������
����+��	�������	����
���	��	��	�����	������
��,������	������� ���
���	������	�������������
�����
���� 
	�������������	�
�����!�
	��������-

./01�23�1/4�2560�17489�74:;71<

=



�����������	
��
�������������������������� !���"#$%&$�'$()*�+,--.$/).01�$%�2(,)'�3,�04$(.�5634�7,)�34.�189:�;(.<'�=.2,(3�>?>@A�546+4&(6</0�3,/.34.(�34.�6<06/430�$<'�6'.$0�04$(.'�&7�.%.(/6</-.$'.(0�$3�,)(�>?>@�B,(-'�96&($(7�$<'�1<C,(%$36,<�D,</(.00E�;460�=.2,(3�60�$--�$&,)3�6%2$+3�F�34.�2,0636G.�6%2$+3�34$3�-6&($(6.0',A�+$<A�$<'�$026(.�3,�$+46.G.�C,(�34.�+,%%)<636.0�34.7�0.(G.E�:<'63H0�$&,)3�34.�C$+3,(0�34$3�04$2.�4,5�C$(�5.�+$<�(.$-60.�34602,3.<36$-E�1<�%7�,5<�5,(I�$3�34.�J3$3.�96&($(7�,C�K)..<0-$<'A�$0�$�C,(%.(L(.06'.<3�,C�34.�:)03($-6$<�96&($(7�$<'�1<C,(%$36,<�:00,+6$36,<A$<'�<,5�$0�L(.06'.<3�,C�189:A�1�$%�03(,</-7�C,+)0.'�,<�4,5�5.+$<�.<0)(.�34$3�5.�$(.�%$I6</�3460�'6CC.(.<+.EM7�.N2.(6.<+.�,C�3460�60�54$3�'(,G.�%7�+4,6+.�,C�34.�34.%.OJ3(,</.(�;,/.34.(H�C,(�%7�2(.06'.<+7E�1H%�.N+63.'�3,�0..�3460(.C-.+3.'�6<�34.�6'.$0�04$(.'�&7�,)(�.%.(/6</�-.$'.(0A�54,�4$G.46/4-6/43.'�&,34�34.�G$-).�,C�03(,</.(�+,,2.($36,<�56346<�,)(C6.-'A�&)3�$-0,�+-,0.(�-6<I0�5634�,34.(�03$I.4,-'.(0E�1�4,2.�34$3�34.�3(.<'0�6'.<36C6.'�4.(.�56--�4.-2�2(,G6'.�$�03()+3)(.C,(�346<I6</�34(,)/4�4,5�5.�+$<�%$N6%60.�,)(�+,<3(6&)36,<�3,0)03$6<$&-.�'.G.-,2%.<3A�$<'�,C�+,)(0.�$�(.%6<'.(�,C�34.�6<06/43F�$<'�C,(.06/43�F�34$3�,)(�.%.(/6</�-.$'.(0�+$<�&(6</�3,�,)(�5,(IE�
PQRSTURSV W�XYZ[\Z�]Ẑ_X�[ Z̀ab�cYdd]�]ZeX�fagh̀�iZaj_Zj̀�dk�gh̀�lẐ_aajjZ[m̀dmì�k̂d[�gh̀�nẐifaj�ndoab^̀jfda�dk�nZi\e�Za]�l_aeZpd_agZfab�q�gh̀�rd[[_afge�oh̀ ^̀�sĵ ò�_m�fa�t_̀ àbiZa]u�v_bĝZifZw��



��������������	���
����
��	������
	����
�����
�����������	�����������������
��
�	����������
������������
	����
������	�������������������
�
�	���
�����
�������������
���
���� 	��������!���	���������������	����"��
��	#�$
	%������	������������	����
�����������	��
	���������������

%����	
��	��	��������������
	����
�����%�
��������&�	
��������������������������
	����	�	������������
���������������	&�#����
����
���	���

%�����
	��	��
�������������������'(��%��)�*
���

+,-./0-.1



���������	��
�������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��!���������������� ������������!!��������������!��������������������������!�������������������������������������������� "#��������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������$�%���������������������������������!���"�&����!������������������������������'(
)�*����+�����������������,-��������������������������������������������������!���"*�������������������'(
)�*���+����������!���� �����������������������������������������������"�
�.�����!�����������������������������������������!��������������!���������������"/���������� ����������������������������������������������������!������������0�������������-1-2�&����
'�� ����'���!������3���������������+������!"�#���������������������������"+�������������.������������������������!�����������$����������������!�%�������������������������������.������������� �����������������������������������0������ ��������������������������������!���"

*������������������ ���������������!���������3�������4�
��0��&�.*��������
��0��
��� �4�������!����������������0�����������������!��������������������������������"�5������������������'(
)0������4��������������!��������������6�����7������0�-121�)�����������������������������������������������������������������������������!�����������������"�'���������.�����������������������������!������4���������!�������������������� ���������������������������������������������������������4�����.� �����������������������������������!����������������������������������������������������!���������!��������������������������������������������������������������������.� ������������"�3������ �����������������������8��������������!����!������������������������������������������������������������� �������� ���������������������������������� ���������"��9



���������	���
�����	����������������	��������������
�������	�������	���������
������������������������
����������������������������������������	��������	��������������������
�����	����������������������		�	����������	�������������� ���������	�	����
������������������������������������ 
�����	�
�������	!�����
������������������	�����
�������������		����� ���

���������	�	������������	�����	�����������
��������� ���������	���	���
����	������������
���
����
�������	�	�����"���������	������������������	���	�����������������	�� �����������
�����	������#�
���������������� ����	���������	���� ���

�������������	����	�������������
�������	!��������������������
��������$����	������������  ��	��� �������	����������
�������	����������	�������	����������������	����	����������������
���������� ������� ������������	����������������

���	����
���������	����
�������	!����
��������������������
�� ������������������	��������
	���  ��	���	����������	� ������������������ ������	������ ������������������������	 �����������
�����	��	������ ����������
��
�������������

�����������������%��������	�������������������������������� ��������������
�������������	����
���#�
������������ ���������
���		���	�� �
�������	�������
�����������������
����������	�&��	'�� �����	������		����������
�����	��		�����
������	��������  ����������
���������	�������	������������	������	����	���	�����		�������������������
��������
	���������	�������
�������������������	��������
���	������	���������������	�� ������� �		����������������������	�������
��������
�	���������������
��"()*��	������ �������� �
��������������
�����	��������� ����������	������������������������	����+,+-�����	���������	�����
�	����������������	����	�� �.	��

��!�������	���������������������)��������+,+/��������
������ ������������
��	��������.��0��!����������������

� �

��������� ���	���	�� �����+,1-�������
�"�������������
����������
����� ��������������������������	�������������	����	�������������
�����	�
���

���2�����������3�4



���������	�
�����
�����	�
����
	��������������� ��!"�����#����$�%��!���&�!���"�'��!��(%�)�*�+�)��"�,!�-)��.-�-)��/+#�!�/�#�*�+-)0"�1����&&�!)��2�3�45!��&"�')+��!#�6#5������4#��#7"�,7+��!)�8���9�!:�2��!:"�*��!�

;<�=6�>+)!�?)&�+-




��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!!�����"�������� ���������#������ �� �!������ ���������!���$��!������������#�����������������%������������� ��������!����%�������������&��������������������!�'�������������������������������������������(����!�����!��������)����������� �����������������������������#�������������������������� ��!����������������������������������!���*���������������������������������� ���������������������!��������������"���������������������������������������������������������������� ��������!���+������������������������(�������������� �����������(����������!�������������������� ,-./012345674893:


����������� �!��������'���������������;�������#�����������������!�������������������������<����������������������#����������������;����������� ���� �!�����������=���������������������!�����#�������������������������������������������!���������>���������������������������������������'�������������
?@ABCDEF

G?H???@



����������	
���	�����	�
�����
		���
����	�	���������������������������������������� �!�" ��"��#� ����$ �����"����� ��%&'��"����$��!(�"&�����"%���")��������� ��$�!� ����� ��������� $$(� �$�* )(�������%��"�#����+��* ��%�)��"���� ��� ���������!����� ,��"+���!(���)��"$"*(#�-��)�����+��(� ��"-�.�"���/ &'$�#� ��"���"�����$����*$ &"�"%��' ����"������-����)%$�%������$�0#�"��-��)������"�$"�*����)��� �(����*���� $1�2"&&%������ ���"������� ,��"$��������,#� �� ���%$�#���&'$(��"������,��*�"��$�!� ����-�������(� ���)"��������*�-��)� )�"���) ��!��&"!�$��������"������"��$�+���)� �*�#�-��$��$�!� ����3�"-�'"����� $����$�&�����!(���"4���"����%)����%����*15�!� �����"��)"%�����"�-"�,��"� ������������'��)�'��"��#� �����&"���� ��!"�������)"����%����&'"�� �)��"�������)"���&����"���.���'�"+����* ))�����"����"�& ��"�� ��������,�$$���"%�����0#� ��-�$$� ����+�$"'��*���- )��+������-��)���� -�"��������'�"'$�#�' )��� ������"%�)��#�!%�������"�('�� ���6���),(3#� ���'���% ���*�'�"'$���"������,����� ��17898:;<=8>?�@=<AB?C-������+�$"'&����'"$�)���� ��'��' ����.��"&�DEF�G��"�DEF�GH0#�������,������ ����"����� ����*����&-�"�*$(����)"%����"-�$�!� �����) �)"����!%����"�& ,��*����&� ��%))���1�����) ��$� ���"�$"-���'"$�)(����)��+�����#�-���#��"���/ &'$�#�$���'�"�%)��+��"%��� )���"�' ����"�����'"'%$ ��"��-�"�& (�"����-����!��"%�"���� )�1� I

J�"�����'"����� $�"%�)"&������� �$�!� ���������%'�� ,��*�"��%��%����� �,�#����'����� +��*�!�����"�*"����!(���"���'��' ���*�'"$�)���1�K"��/ &'$�#����(�L"!���,���������-"�,#�"�)���4�������*���� $� ''$(��"��!�������1M���!�) %������(�-������*$�)���#����(�"�3����)��+�������%''"�����)��� �(��"�%$��$��������"$��1������'$ )��� �����"� $'����%���"��$�!� ����#�'"����� $$(���%)��*������� !�$��(��"���$�+���"�"�����-"�,1N8O<;>O8C�"�����������"����)���"�P& ,���� ��"������� ,��"$����#�����)� �*�������������&'$��Q���������� �������"� ,������"%�$(�����) $$��������RSTSJ*��� ��"�-"�,�-���� $$��� ,��"$����1�
K"��$�!� ����#�-��� +���"�!���� $����)�Q'��)�'��"���-�$$��"��)� �*��!(���&��$+��1�U��������"����� �+") )( �� �,�(�' ���"����$�+����*��"��"%�)"&&%������#� ��-���"%����#�-��) �3�1V&'"�� ��$(#�-��) ���%''"���)� �*�����1�W��"����&%���!��& ����"����%���� ��'"$�)(& ,���� ����� ,��"$������)"*����������� ���"�& ��+��'"����� $"��&"�����$�!� ����� �������*� ���

XYZ[[\[]�̂Z_̀a�b[�_c̀d̀bcef̀_�cgZcZd̀�[bc�b[Ye�bYah�̂ic�jZe�[bc�̀k̀[gZk̀�̂`̀[�ZllidZc̀�\[�cg̀�fZ_ch�\_�Zfbbd�_cdZc̀]em



������������	�
��������	�
���������������������������������������������������������
��������������
��������������������������������������
�����������	�������
����������������������

���������������	�
������������������������������������
��������	���	�������	�����������������������������������
	�������������
������������������
����
�������	�
����������������������	�������
�������������������������������
�	����������������
����������

����������������������	���������������������������������
���
������
�����	��������������������������
�����������
�������������������������������	��������
	�����������	���������������	���������������������
����������	��������	�
���
������������������������������������������
���������������	��������������������������������������������� ������������������������������	�
�����
������������������ ��������������!�"��������
����	����������������������������������������������������������������	���������������
���

��������
���������������������������������������������������
#$



�������������	�
������	����������������������������������������������	��������������������������������������������������������������������
���������������������������	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������� !�����������������������������������"�#������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$��������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������%���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���������������������������������
	����������������
���������������!����������������������������������������	�������������������������������������&�����
�����������������������������������'�����
�������������(����������������������������������������
������	��������������
�������������������������������������������������
�����������������)��������������������������������������'���������
������������������������������������
���������������������!��*���������	��������������������������������������
����������������������������	�����������������������������������
����������������������������

��������������������������������������������
����%������	�������������������������������������(��������
���������������������������������������������������������(����
��������
	����������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������
��+,-,./01,23�4105637����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
����������	��������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������8��������
���������������������������������������
������9:;<<������������������������������������
�����������!������������9:;<=������������������������������!��*����������������������������������������������
��������������	����������������������������������������
�������������
���������������������������������*��������������������������������������'��������9:;<#!���������
������������������������������������������������������������'���!����������>��������	��������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������	�����������������������������������	�����������
��������������������
������������������������??

@A�BC�DEC�FGHIJ�KL�MGKNM�JGFN�O�POQE�QEOQ�JKLRGSNQL�QECTOISC�GU�RGVVSNKQWXJHKTCN�KNUHOLQHSRQSHCLY�ONJ�GUKNUGHVOQKGN�UGH�JCTCIGPVCNQ



���������	�
���������������	���������	��		�����	����	�����������������	��	������	�����������������	������������	�������
	�
�	����
��������	��	�	������������������	���	�	����	��	���������������������������	���
�	��	���������������
���	����������	�����������	��� �!�"#�$���	����������	��������	��%&'()*'&+������������	�����	����	����	�������������	����	����	�������	���	������	����������	�
��	����������������	����������������	������
��	��������	�����������	�	������������	��	�������	�
��	��	����,	�����������������	�	�����	�	������������	���	�������	�����	���	���-�����	.���	�����	���
	��	���������������������	��������	������������	���������	����	����������	�,	���	���		������	�
����������	�����������	�	��������	�����	����������	����	��������	��	����	������	�	�������-���������

������������	����	�	�����	��	�
����	����	
	�
�	���	�������	��	���������������������	����������	�	�����	��
������	������������������������������
/0

12�3456789:8:;�<4=�>5?@=�9A3966@:8<2BCD8>=:�8:8<85<8>=EF?8GD5D8=E�35:�5?E9�E<D=:;<4=:�<4=8D86753<F�567?8A2�<4=8D�D=?=>5:3=F�5:CG=396=�8:C8E7=:E5G?=�5;=:<E�9A79E8<8>=�345:;=�8:�E938=<2H

J��������	��		�����K����	����������
��������	����������������	�������	������
��������������-���������������	���.�	���������	�����������	�	��	��	��������	����K�����	��	��
������������������	�	�
������������	�L����
����	����
��������	���L������������
������	�������
�	�	����	���	����������������������	���������
������������	�		������������������	�
�
	�
�	���������������������	��������	�������������������	�����	�����������������	������������	��������	�
����	��������������



�����������	
�������	����	����	���	����
���������
����������������������������������������
���	
������
��
�����
��
���
���������	���������������������������������
����	���
����	�
����������������	�	�
�����
���
�����������	���	���������������
	
�	��������� �����	����	
���	��
��������������������������
��	!�
�������	"������	
����������	!����
�����
���
��	����
��	���
�	
�������������	
��������	��	��
�	���������
�����
�������	
�����������#������������������������
������	�����
������
���
�	������������������
����	�������	����������������$��	�����	����	���������������������
������
����
��������
������������������
	
����������������������	����	
�����
���������
������	�
	������������
���
�����������
�����������������������������
������������������
�����	
���

��	���
��������	����	����%�����������������������	���	�
�����	
����������
�������������	�������������������	
��������	��� �����	
��	�����
���������&���������
	�'��	��������������
�	
��������
���	��������������	
���	����	���	
��������	
����������
�	��	�����������������������������������������()*)+,-.)/0�1.-2304����
�����������
�������
�������
��
���
��
�������	�����	����
	������������������
��	�����������	
������������	������������������
������������
���5
��	�����	������������
������	
���	��	
�������	
����������������������������
	���������
���

�����
�����	�������������	������	�����������
������67�	����������6��������������	
�������	���
��� ��������������
������	����������������
������������	�����
�	��
�	��������&89:�;���'�	
��	�������	���������&89:��<��<�'������	���	���
����	���
������	��	
������	����
���
����

��������&89:�=��<>'�������������������	���&89:�='�����	����	�������	���&89:�<<'��$�
��7��
��������
�������	���	���������	7����
���
����������
�	��
���
������
����	�
�
���	
���	�����	��
��������
����������	��	���� ����	�����
������
���
�����	������!	���	����!����
���
�7�	�������	
���	����������	�����������?)@-,/@)4�����	��������������	������������
����������&�����'����
��
���5
���������	���������������
��	�������
������������������	�����	���
����	����	
�����	��
�����
��A��	
��	���
������������!	�����������	����������������������	��������	!�	����	
��	
����	���
��	������	�������
������������
�B���	�������������������������
�������	����������
������������	
������������6��
�������������������� ����	��������������	�����
�����������	����	
�����������������
����
��
��������
���
����� �������	�����	������
����
����	�����	
��
�������������
�������	�����	���	��
���������������������������������������������������������
�	������
����	���
�����	���	��	�����CD

EF�GH�IJHK�LMNHOPQRST�UNVWQL�SURHXQHY�Z�JHX�SM�SLMUR�[MPQH\RSOIRHO�Z�QS�OQY]ORHQHY



��������	
�������
���
���
����
��������������������������
���
����	������������	����������
������������	��
�
�����������
�����	������	���	������	����
���������������
������
�����	�	����������������������������������
��
�
�������
���������
������	�����
������������	�������������
���
����
������	�
	��

��

� !"�#! $%&'(�)"�*+,-�) !./ &&$# !$-01"&'�- � 1"!/ *"�%0,-!+,-02�3+#&0/�,"!10/",(�$%1 /$-024�5 !"6+0-$#&"�%0,-!0#+-0 2� 5�!", +!/",�- ,+33 !-�&0#!$!0",�02�5+&50&&024�-7"0!3 -"2-0$&8

�:



����������	
����������
��	
��������������
	�����	������
��	���
���	����	���	���������������������
������
������������������	����
	�����	�����������
������	
��
��������
��	����
��	�	
����������������	�������
��������
������	��	��	�����������������������
�������
����������
�������������	�����������	�����������������	���
�������
���	��������������
�������������
	��������
���
�����	
����
�	�������
	
�������
���
���	����	��	���	
������������	�����
��������	���
��������������
������	���	����
�������������	��	����������������������������	������
�
	������	���������
�������������
�	����������������	��
� ��
��	
�	��������������	��
������������������������
����
���	��	��
�	�����	��	����������
�����
�����!���
������������������������
�	��������
��������	��
����������������	�
���
��������������"���	��	����
� ��
��������������
��������������
��	����	�������������#�����������������
	��	�����	�$��	������������������������������������������	����	
�

%���������������������
������#	����
��$�	�	
�����������&��������������������������������	���������������������	��������#	���������������	��$�������	
��%��
	
�����	���	��	
�����	
�
���������	���
����������	����
	�������	
��������	���������������
�	������	�������	���
����	����
����	���	�����
����'()(*+,-(./�0-,12/3����	
����	�����������
���������
	���	���������������
�����
������������
����	�����
������4������	������45�#������
��$����46�#����
�� ����$���457�#
�������� �	������$��	���455�#����	��	�����������	������������$��8������������������������������	�������9������������������������4���	�����	��	�������	�����������������:���
���	�����������	���
	
�����
��������	��������	����	
�����%�	
��������	�����������;���	���	�������������
�	
�����������
�	�����������	����	���	���������������������������4��<�	��5=�	
��	������
�������������	��������>��	
�����������	��	������
������	������������
������������
��������	��	���	����
�����
���������	����	��
�	�
 ����������������������
����	����
��������	������������������
����	�
�������?@

AB�CDEF�GHIFEJF�JDKHFLHFJ�MNOF�GFPHIFEHQR�SQHIFEJNPJFEIHKFJ�NQG�NKTHFIHQR�FUSHLV�MDEF�KDMWPHKNLFG

XYZ[\]̂]_̀�abZ�cdaZ_a][\�de�f]gZĥ]aijk[_�hZlm]hZ�[�hZ[f]_Ẑ �̂ad�̂adc�[_fhZe\Zka�d_�bdn�Zo]̂a]_̀ �̂ahmkamhẐ[_f�[cchd[kbẐ�p[i�[eeZka�f]eeZhZ_ah̀dmĉq�rabZhn]̂Z�ZgZ_�abZ�pd̂am_]gZĥ[\]̂a]k�̂Zhg]kZ�]̂�[a�h]̂s�detZkdp]_̀�[�fh]gZh�de�Zok\m̂]d_q�



��

��������	
��
��������
��
���
��������
������������
���
������
��������
��
���������
��
����
��
���� �
���
!�
!������
���
���
��
������
�����
���������
�"�
����"������#
���������
�����!��
���
����#
�����
�
��� "� �
���������
$� ����#
��
����
���"���
!����������� �
%�
��
����
��������
�������
��
��!
!��
��
�������
������������
����
����
���������
���!������� 
��
�������#
��
������!���
�����
���"�����
��#
���
��
����"���!���
!�
��
����
���
�����������
��
�������"���
����"����
��
���
����
����
��
����
!���
������� 
��
���
������
!�
����"������� #
���
���� 
��
!���
�"�!��
��
������ #
��
!���
��
��������� ���
���
���� ������
���
����!��������
��� ��������
 ��"��
��
 �������
&���� 
����
��
���������
�����
����'���������#
!�
���
������
����
��������
���
�����
���
��������
����������
����
���������
���"������
�������
����
��
�������
!���
��
�����
��� ���
���
����
���������
�
�����
!�����������
�����
���"��#
����!����#���
����
��
�"��
����
������� �
��
����������
���
������(������
��
����
��
���
���"����
!�����
���"��
����� 
�"��
����
!�
����#!�����
�"�
�!�
!��������#
��� �������
��������
���������
��
����
���������
���
������
�������
������
!������"�
����������
��
���"��
����
�"�!��������
��������
���
����"������!�
������
)���
�����
������ 
��
�"�����"������
��������#
���
����
� ���#���� ����� 
!��
��
������ 
����
�"�!���������#
���
��!
!�
���
 ���
����������"������
��
*���
���
��������

+�����#
�� ��� 
!���
��
������!�������
��
���
�����
��
���� ���"�����"������#
��
!���
��
��
�����������
���
�������
!���
�������������
��
��
�"��
�
����
���
�����������
���
��
�����
������"�����
&"����� ���
�"������� 
��������"�
��������� �"�
�����
!���
����"������
���������
��
�����



���������	�
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������������
����	�����������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������	����������������������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������	��		��������������������������������������������������������	������������������� 	�������������������!�������������������������������������������������������������������	�����������������������������������
����	�����	�������������
��������������������
�����������������������������	�
�������
�������������������������������������������������������������������!��	��������������������������������
�����������������"������#��	���		�����������������	����������������!�������������������������
�	�����	�������������������	���
�����	����������������������	���������������������������	������������������������������	����������$���������������������	�������������	�����	���������������������������������������
��������������
�������������
�����%���������������������������������������������	���������������
���������������"�������	�������������

����������������������������������#����������������������	������������%����������������
&����������������������������
�����������
����������������������������������������
�������������������������������	�������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
����������������������
����������������������������������������	��������� 	���������������
�������������������������������������������������
������������������'()(*+,-(./�0-,12/34����������������������������	�������������������������	���������������������	�����������	������������	�����������������������������������������������567�89�"���������������������������������������
������	�����������������������8:����������������������	��������#��;���
�����	���������	��
�����������������
�������������������
�����!�	�����������������������������		�	�������������"567�8:#��������������������������������������"567�<����8=#���������������������	����������	��>?

@A�BCDEFGHIJK�JL�MIDIHGF�NOGPCN�IN�GPPCFCQGHIKDR�SEH�TIHUJEHPJKNIMCQGHIJK�JL�IVOGPHN�JK�UJT�FISQGQICN�NEOOJQHMCWCFJOVCKH
XY�Z[�\]̂_�Ỳ�̂abcd]Ya�è �̂Y\a�[̀ Ŷ�̀ef]̂aecd�gc_bahaiY�Y\]Y�dZĵ]̂Za[�iaa_Ỳ�h]ka�l\ai�][[a[[Zib�l\aY\â�]i_\̀l�Ỳ�]fmcẐa�]i_�n̂ òZ_a�]ffa[[�Ỳh]YâZ]d[



��

���������	��
��
�������	��
������������	��������������������
���	���������	�����	���� ����
�	�	�����������������������	��������������
		��������������!�"#$%&'(%$)��	�������������	�����������������������������	�������	���������������	�����	���
	 ����������	�����	����	 ��������������"*���������
���������+�����������������	��������
������������	����������	�
�
������	�����	�����,����������+�����	�����	�������	�����	������������������������
�����	���������	������������������������	���������"�-���
	��������	��������.�������������.���������
	�����������������	���������������������������,��	���
	 � ������
����	���	��������������	������������������������������
��� 
	� ����������
��	���+�������	������������������	���	�����	�������,������	�"�/
�	�
��
���� ��������	����
������
��������	��������������������	�������	�����	����0������������ �������	���������	�����������������
�����������	�"�-���
	�������	�������	����	����	�����������	��
���		������
	 � ��������������
�������������������
����
����������	��
����	�����	��������������
���������	�
���������
����
���������������������	������ 
����
���������������	�����
	�� ��"�-���������	���	�	�������������������������������
���������	 ����������	���������	����������������	��������������	������	��	��������
�����	�	����+���������������	����	�����	���	�����"�1���	���	������������������	��
��
����������� ��
����������������	���������������	���

�������������������
�����������	��	�	�������������	���	�����	���������"�
2	3	����
	�
���	�������������
���
����
	��������,���������	�����������������	�������3�����	���	���������	���"�*����������������+����� �����������	���	������� ����	���
����	�� 
�������	�����	��
����������	��
	 ���	�����	����	 ������.�	�������	��.�������������"�4����	��	��
���� �������	������ ��
��	�������������������
	����������
�
��
���
����	�������	���	����������
���������	���������	���	���+������������	���	�����	�"�*����������
	����	����	����� ��
�	�
�����	�����������	����	�������������	�����	�������	������
�	�	���� 
�������	��������������	�	������
�������������"

5�678�9:;<�=>�<?@A�@A�:B=C<�D:6@EFGH7:;�I?:<�<?7�G=A<A�=>�@E<7;;C9<7J@E>=;D:<@=E�>H=IA�:;7K�L7�G:EE=<7M97G<�J7G@A@=END:67;A�<=�>@EJ�=C<>=;�<?7DA7HO7A�:B=C<�;7A7:;G?9;=P7G<A�I?@G?�?:O7�?:J�<=�B7;7A<;@G<7JQ�=;�=97E�:GG7AA;79=A@<=;@7A�I?@G?�:;7�>:G@EF�D:P=;CEG7;<:@E<8



������������	���
��������
��������
���
����������������������	��	��
�������	
�����
�
�
��
���	������	����	����
���	���	����
�
���	������	�
��������	���������������
�	���	�����	��������������������	�	��������
��
����
���������������
�	������������	�
�����������������

��	�����
��	��
���	������	�����������������	���������������������
���	�������	����	�
�������	������������
�����������
�����	�������	��
����
���������������������	����������
������	�����
����������	���	���
	
���
�
����	
��	��� �	��
�	�����	��
�!���	������	��������
�	���������������������

��������
�����
����������������������"�����������������
���������������
����	���	��
��	���	�����������������������
�	���������
��������	���	������
����	�������	�������	���
�	����������������
��	����
�����������
��������	��	�����
�����������������	�	����������	���
�	����������������
��������������������������
����#�	�����	�����������	�����������������	���������

������������
��������
�
������������
������������
	�����	����	���

�����
��
�	��	������������������������	
���	��
�������
�	�����������
�	�����

	���������
���������
	
���
�	������	�����������	��
������
	
���
	�������������������	�����������	��������������������	��	����

���	
��������
�������	
������	���������
�$%&%'()*%+,�-*)./,0��	�� �	��������������������	���
�	���������
�����
���
�
�	�
������	����
���������	�	������

�������������
�1���	���2�������	�������������34566��7�����������
������
��������	������	���
��	������� ��
�������	���

������������

���	��������
������
�����	����������	�
�������������	�����345�6�"���������������	���
�����
����
	���
�	�����������������	�����
����������
���������������� �������	������	����
�
���
��
����������������������	���8�������9�
�	��
�������������	����������������
�������
���������������	���	���

������
��	�������8345
�:�	��6;9��<�	
����
	������������=	��������	�����	���
�
���������������������	����������������
�������
�����
�	�������
������
��������������
���������
��
������������������
������	�
���������
>?

@A�BC�DCEFGHIDCJKL�MCEGFNHDC�OPFKQ�DCNGCIDRDGI�ESHKKGCJGIHCQ�EPTUKDEHNGI�IGFVDEGWQGKDVGFL

XYZ�Y[Y\�]̂ Y\�_̀abcb̀Yd�ẐYedY_[YdcbY�dfcbYgh�ibj]̀\i�k\lYbZc̀\Zm�̀d_̀nY_m�Zj�dYY�ẐYe�ejbY�obYpkY\Z_mf_clYg�̀\�c�lb̀d̀d�bYdfj\dY�bj_Y



��

��������	
��
�������
������
�
��
������
������������
���������
��
����������
����
����������
���
�������������� 
����������
�������!"��
�
������
�����
���
������#����
��������
�������$
����������
���
�������
�
�����
��#��$
��������
�������
���#����
�������
�
���������!"������
���$
��
���
����������#�������
����������
���
������������������
������
��
���������������
���
���#���
����������!
%������
�
���������
��
�� ��������
����
�������
���
����#�����
�������
�������$
����
���������
���
�������
�������
��
��������!
&���#��$
�
�
����
�����
���
���������
���
�����
���
��
�������
��
���������
������������
���
����#���!
'�����������
�������
��
 ��
�����
������� �
���
������
��������������
�� �$
���
����
���
�������
������������
����
���
�������
�����������
����
��������
��
 ��
����������������
���
�������
��������
������������ ���$
�������
���
���������
��
�
���
������!
(�
���
��#�����
���
�)������
������������
��
�������
���������
����#����
����������
���
��#�����#�
������$
�������
�����������
�����
�����������
��������
�������
�
��
����������
�������������!
*���
�������� �
� �
���+���������
,�#��������
-����
�������
������
�
����
������
��������!




����������	���
��	���	�������������������	����������������������������	���

��������������	��������������	��
��������������������
��	����������	�����������	�� ��	�������������	����	����������������������!������	����
�������������
����������������
�	��
����������
�	��
������
���������!��������	����������
�����
���	������
��	������
"��������	��	������� ����

������������ ������	�����������#
���!��

$�� �����
���������
�	��������	���
���������
�	���
!���	�������
�	!�������
��������������	���������!����������	���
�
�������������	��
������������	������	��������	������	!����������	
	�������
�
���

	���������
������	������	���	�������
������� �	����	����������	�����	��� ����%	�������	�	!������	��� �������	���	���������
���������	������������	����	���������
���������������	��� �������������	�����	�
�����������������	
����	�$
�&���'���������������	����	��������������	���������������������
����
�&��
��	������������������	��%��

���
�
��� �����������

�� �����
�������
�	��������	�
���	����
!
�

��	������������	���������
����������
���������	�	���	�
�
����	��	����
���
�(�
���	!������������  ���)*+*,-./*01�2/.3415�	
������	�������� �����������
	���	���������������������������
���
� �	�����������
�
�	��������  �������� �������	����
���
��
���

�  �������	�����������	��	
�� 
�
�	�	������������������������	���
��	��	!��	���  ���������	�$
���
	������������

�	���� �����67 �����
������
������	�
�����	��
������������89:;<�=>	����
���
� ������:�	�
?��������
����
�����������������

	���	���

��������������	���	�
����

���������	�����	���	������  �������������������	����	��	����89:;<��
���	��������� ���������#�	������	�
$�=	���
����89:;@?� ���
�������	���������������
� ���	���� ����������:�	�
�������	��������A*B.-0B*C�D���	���
������������������������� ���������	���	������	����
���
����������
��
�	!�������
������	������	��	����������������
����(������
	��	����

���������������
��E��
��

���	�� �������	���
����������	���� ������	����	���

���
�	���
�����	����
���
�����
�	�������������������������
�	��������	�����	����F� �
������	���������� �����	���	��������	���
��	������	��������������%�����
��	����
�����
�����  ��������	����

�
�����	����	�����
�	���	����������������G������HI

JK�LMNON�PON�QNORSRTNUT�PUV�WOXYSUW�ZPOOSNOR�TX�Z[S\VSUWQPOTUNORMSQR�]XO�VN̂N\XQ_NUT
`abcd�cbefgfbdh�agid�g�jkbljdcm�nbodpqrdkrbgc�rq�sqkrfbejrd�rqodidcqptdkr�gsfqhh�rad�uvwvxydkogz�radm�oq�kqr�{�gko�haqjco�kqr{�kddo�rq�oq�hq�gcqkd|



��

������������	
����������

�	���������������
�����������
���������������������
�����	��
�	����������		
����
�	�����
������������	��
����������������	����������
�������	�����������
�����
�	
�������
������	�����	�����	��
�����������	��
��	�������

���������	�������	�
������	
����������
������
�������	�����������������������	�����������������
��
�������
���	���������	�
����� ���������������
������		���	������	�
����
�������	����������
��
�������
	����	�
�����������������		�
��������
����	��
����������	���������	�����	��
���������
��	����	����
�	�������������������
��

���
����	�
�	�	��



���������	��	��
����������	������	�����������������	��
�����	���������	����������������������������	���������������	�	�����
��	�����	��������������	�	���
�	����	�	���������
�����������	����
������
������
�����	�������������������������	��������	�	������
���
�������������������	�
�������������	�����������
��		�������	����
��������������

������������������������������	�������	���
���������	������	���������������	���
����������	��������������������������������������
������	����	��������������������������������	��	��������	���������������	���	
������	�	����������	�����������������	�����������
�	��	��
���������������������
������������	��������������������������	���
�������������	���������������	����	����� �����	����������	���������������������	�
�����!��������������	�����	��
��"�������������	�����	�	���������������	���	��	������	�������������������	�����������������������
�������������������	��	����������������������������������������������	�
���	��
������	�����������������������	���������	��������������	�	�����������	�����������	��������������������
���������	�����������������	��
���������	���������������	�������	�	����	�������������������
���	��#�����	����	�	����������������
�����	
�	��������������������	�����	����������������
��������

�������	�����������	������ $%

&'�()*+,+-).-�/)0/*123,415�,.)6715,-,)+�1*)�*),.80*4)9�:;7.)6715�,.<)+-=).-�,.�27:5,4�+)*<,4)+>?�@ABC�DAE?FGHC@I�JC�@FHKK�@CC�KHLGMGNM?O�H?PAGBMFHA?�JAGQCG@�E?@EGCMLAEF�JRCFRCG�FRCN�JHKK�LC�SMHO�MFFRC�C?O�AP�FRC�BA?FRI�AG�CTC?�PAGRAJ�BM?N�RAEG@�FRCN�DM?�DAE?F�A?CKCDFGHDHFNI�JRHKC�AFRCG@�OA�?AF�CTC?RMTC�FA�FRH?Q�MLAEF�FRC@CI�M?O�DM?PADE@�FRCHG�CPPAGF@�A?�AFRCG�H@@EC@UWXYXZ[\]X̂_�̀]\ab_c���������������������������������������������������
���
���������	���������������	����	��������	�����!���������������������������
	�����������
����	�����������������	��	������	�	����������	����������������������	��������������������������
��������d#ef�gh�������	�����������	��������������������
�	����	���d#ef�ih����
�������	��������	�������	��������������������	�������d#ef�jkh��l�
�������������������	���������	�������	�����	����
���
����������������������	��
����
���
�������
��	������	�
���
�������
�������d#ef�jjh�m�����������������������	�	��������	������	�������������������	�	���������	��������������"�����������	������	����	������	����	���������������	����	������������
�����	������������������������������������������	��������
�	���	�����������	���������
�������"���������������������	������������������������
	����������������������������	����	�	��������



��

�������	��
�
	��	���	���������	������	
������	���	������������������	����	�������	
��������
	���	����������������	�����������	����	�	 ��	�������	!���	�"�����	���#�	����
�������	�#����	
������
	��	�������	��	�����

���������	�
����
	��	���$#�����%&	�����
	�	���#�	��	��������
	���
����
��� ���	��	��	��	�������	
������
	����������	����
�	'������	������������	��������� ���	�����	��#�����
	�������������	
�����

	������������������	�������	
������
&	���
�����	���������	����
�����
	��	����
����#�����(���������	���������&	����#�������

�������&	���	
�
���	�#�����������	�#����	
���������	��
�	������
&��������	���������	����#��������	�����
�#���	
�����	����

	��������
	���������	
�)�
	���	��������
�*����

���	��	���������	��	����������&	�
��������	��	������	�#�������
&	���
���
	#������������������#�����
	��	�"����	����

	��	��������	��	
������
&	��������������	��	
�����
�	��������
	��	
����	�
�������	#�
	��	 ��������	�������#����	�����������+�	��
�	����	��	��������
��������

�����	�����������	�������������
	��������	��	��������	��������
��	��
����	��	��	����
	��	�#�������#�����
�	,��������&	��������������
	��	!�������%	�������	
�����������
���	���	���	�� �	����	��	���
�	�������	��
���	���	�������#�
&	���	�����
#��	���	-#
�	��	������	��	�	����	��������	����&	��#	���	���	����������
�	
������
�

(�������
	���	��	��#�
�	��
�	����������	�����	����������
&	�#������������
&	���	����	����������������
&	��������
	���	��	�������	���#���	����������	�������
	���	����������	���	�#���	����#�����
�	.��������������&	��	���#����	�
	�#���	
����	'���������	���������������	�����������&	���	�"��������#�	������
�����
	�� �	./(0&	�����
�	�����	��	����	��	��	����
	������
&	���	����	��	��������	
����
	�������������&	���	�"�����	���#�
����	#
�	��	�������	����
�	1��#���
&	��	���	����	������
	��	����	����������	��-�����	�����	�������
������
�	



������������	�
��������	��������������	���������������������������	�����	
����	����	�����	��	��	���������	���
�	��������		�����	�
	��������	���	�����������	
���
�
	
����	
���������
����
�������	����������		�����
���	��������	���	��������	����	�	�����
��
	������������		���������������	����	�����������	��	�����������������	������������������	����������	 ����	����������
�����������������	�!�����������������	�	��������	���������	����	�	�������������������	
������������������������	����������	
�	����������
�����	�������	��������
��	����	�
���		����������������	�����	�
������
���	�	�����������	�������	�������������������	�����	���������������
�	�	������������
������������������������	����������	�����	�����������������	���	����	���
����	������������		����"��	��������������	�	����	�������	���	����	���
	��������	
����������������	
��	�	�	����	�	������������
�	��#���������������	��������������	��	����
����	��		������	�	
�����������	
�	�����	���������	��$��������	�����
�������������	
������	����	����	�	������	����������	 ����	�������������
�����	�����	��������������������	��		������� �����������������	�����������������	��	��������
����������	����	��������������	���
	��������	�������	���	�����������	���%�������	
����������
	������	 ���������������������������������
������	�	��	�������������������	��������

���������	�����	�������	�������	 �	������	��������������	�����������������	����	�����	��	���	���
����������	���	���	��	����������	������	�����������	�����	�������	�����������%�	��
������	�	��������	�������	�����	���
�����
	��	�����
������������	����
��	��������	�����
	���������������
��	�	���	��������	���	�
���	�	��	�&'(')*+,'-.�/,+01.2����������������	�����	��	��	��������������	����	�	��		
������	�����������������������������������������������������	���%��������������������
	����	�������������	�����	��������	���������������������	�������������
	��	����	����
���������������������	��	��������������	����	������		
�3���������������	����	��������	��������������
	���������������������������
����	�	������������������	�	����	�	���������
���
�������
������������	���������	�����	�	�����	����������������������������������	���	������������	�������	���$��������
	����	����������������	�	���	�������	�������	���	�������	�	�������		
�������������	����������	�����������

�	������	����4567!���
���	���������456��8���
�79!�$���	���	����	���������������	��������
�������������	����
�����	������	�����	��456�77!�����	�����������������	�	������456�:!����
��
		
��������	�����
���	����������		��	����	�	����������������	��	���������������	�����
��456�7;!�<=

>?�@ABCDCE�DFG�AFHICJDKAIF�LICMNCO�DCN�ONNF�DO�DPQARADCANOSCDKTNC�KTDF�GNUNRIVJNFK�DWKICO�AF�KTNAC�ILF�CAXTK



��

��������	
���
��
���
������
���
�
��
���������������
�
���
�����
�
��
������������
����
��������
��
������ ����
�!�����
������"
��� ��������
��������������
���
����
�����#
$�
����������
����������
���������
������
�����������#
%�������
���������������
���
���������
������������
�������
���
������������� ��������"
���
���� �
���������
��
����#
&���
�����
���������
��
�����
��
���
�������
������ �����"
�'�������
��
����
����(����
������
��
������
� �� �������������
���
������� ���
�� �
�������������#
)��
������
����"
����
��
�
����
������
�� �����
��
�����
��������������
���
����
��
�����������������
�����������#
&������������� �
������
���
�� �����"
��
������ ���
���
������
��
�����
�������������
��(��
��������"��������
�
������
��
�����������������
������
������
��
���������#*�����������"
��
����
��
��������������
��
��� �
�����������
��
�����������
��
�������
����"
���
��������
�������������
��
���+�����������������
��
�����
�(����
���
��������
������
����
���������"
����
�������(���
��
�!�����
����#


%����
���
����������
��(��
��������
��
��
�����
�'������
��
��(������
������
��
����������
������������#
$�
�����
����
�������
����������
�����
�� �����"
�'����"
������������
��������
����
���(
��������
����������
���
��������������
����
����
�� �",�
����"
��
����
��
��������
��
�����������#
$�(���
����
���������
������"����
��
�������
���
��������
��������������
����
���#
-�
���
���
��!������
��
���
./0-12+,3%*
4�����%����
5��������"
�����
���
���������� ���"
��
���
�� ��
���� �������"
���
���
��(
����������
������#


6789:;7
<9==><?@A>
B<?@9C
BCDBDA9<B<EF
G>
<BC
>=>AB?>
?7>
H?B?:H9I
=@J8B8E
BCD
@CI98KB?@9C
G98L>8HG98=DG@D>F
I9H?>8@C;
B
<:=?:8>
9IM89I>HH@9CB=@HK
BCD
B;>C<E
G@?7@C9:8
M89I>HH@9CN



������������	
���
������
�	�����	�
��	�
�������
����
�	����	�
������
��
��
�������
�����
���������
�	�
��
��
��
������
	��
��������
��
�
��
���
��
��������	��
�
��
�	�����
�	
��
����	�������������
���
������������	��������	
�����
�	�
�����	��
���������
���
���
�	�
���
�����
����
�����	�
�����
��
����
���	�	����	��
������
��	
��
����
�����	�	��
	������	��
������	�
��������
������	�
������
�������� ���
��
����
��
���	
��
���	������!������
��	������
�	�
����������
���
�������	�
������
�������	�
������
����
��������
�	����
���	����
�����
"�����������	������	
���
��
����
�	
��
���
�����
��	����
�����	���
�����	��������
����
���
��
�����
"	�
�������	�
��
��	�
��
�����
��	������
�	�
��
���	���
��
��	�����
�
��	
���	�
������
��������
������
�	
	�
�����

���
����	��
�������
�
�����
�������	��������	
�	�
�	�����
��	�������
������
��
���
��������	����
�	�����	
����
���
��
����
���	��	�
��
������
�	
����
����#$����
����
�	
���
���	�����
�	�
����	��	
�����
����
���	
�
�����
����	��������	
��
��������
�������	��������
�	���	�
��
�	
����	������
���
�	
��
�����
��
���������
��
��	�
��
��
���
�
	��

%�
��������
	�
��
��
��
����
�����&���	�
���
��
��	�
�	
��
��������
��
����
������
��
��
�������	�
�������
�����	�
�	
��
�
����	�����	���	�	�
�	�����	���
�����������
'�	
������
����(
��
������
�	��������	
�����
!	
������������	
�����	�
�������
����
��
	������
�������
�
����
�����������	����
��
��
����������	�����
�	��
��
��	��
��
������
����
��	�
��
	�
���
)*

+,-
./012/3425306
706536894:
0;9636<
8;
69=
9>;975253064?0@
36?0@A25306
277944

BCDEFG
HIJ
KI
LIFG
MNNF
OPN
GCONQCROI
OPN
QESNJ
QIJLST
EO
EK
EUVIJOCFO
OICDIES
MNWIUEFG
KNNF
CK
C
SNCSXNFSTUCEFOCEFEFG
EFWJNCKEFGLR
KUCLLVCOWPNK
YEF
JNLCOEDN
ONJUKZ
IH
OPNQESNJ
EFHIJUCOEIF
KVCWN[
]̂ _̂ àbc d̂e
fcbghei
��
�	��	����	��������	
���	��������	�
��
������
��	��
�������
���
�
���	������
�������
�����
����
�	
��������	�
��
������	���
�����
����
�������	
'jk�l(
�	�




��

��������	
����	��	��������	��������������	���	����	���	����������
������	���	�����	��	���	�������	��������	���������	
����� �����!�	����	��������������������	��������	�����	"���	��	"����#�	����������$�"�%���	"���	���������	���	���������	����	��	���	����	�����	�����	&#������	��	�	�����	���	������%�	�������'�!���	"���	���������	��	������������	������	��	����	�����	
������	��%����	��	���	����	�������	�������	���	����	����	�#�	��������������������%��!�	���������	�	"�����	�������&�����	����	����	��%�	%��#��	�����!	��	��%���	��������	��	�#��#�����������	(��	%#��������	��&&#��������	������#����	���������	���	��	��!������������	��	&�&��!�	���	"����	����#���	��!	�������	��	�����&����������	��	��	����	�������%��!�	�����	����&�������	������#������	���	���#�����	&���	��%����	��������	����	�����������	"����	"����	
��	�)��*+,-./,+0����	��	���	���"��	����	��	���������%�	1�����	���#��	��	�	������%�	������	�����	��������	���	�������������	��%���	�����#��	����	���������	��%�	����	���������	���	����������	��	�����������������!�	&�����	������������%�������	��	���	��	���������	��	"���	���������	�����	��&&#������	��	���������	#��	���	�����&�����	���!	�����"����%��	��	���'�!���	�����	�����	��	���	%��#�	��"������	��	�	&���	���"�����	"�!������	����!	��	�#���	2��������%������������3�	���	����%���	��	�#�����������	���	&���	�������%�������������	4�	���	��%�����	�����%�����!	���	�����	��	���	������!	�����	

��	&���&���	�����	���	�������������"�����	���������	�����������&������	���	�������	��&&#���!������&����	 �#�����!�	"���	"�����#����	�����������	"�	���#��	����������#���%��!	��	��"	"�	���	����������&�	���	����#��	�����	#��	�����%�����!	���	�����	��	������	������"�����	��	�#�	�����	��	&���&���������



���������	
��������
����	���������������	
��	���������
��	�����
��	������
�����
��
������
������������
����
��	������	��
�������
�
�������������������������	
��	�
��		��
���
���
���������	�
��
���
�����
��	��
���	
������
��	�����	���	����
������������
��
���������������	��������
�������������������	�����	���	����������� �����	����!��������������
����
������������	�	������	�
� ��	��
����� ��
���������������
��
��
���������
����
����������	�	����������
����	
��	�
��"������
������������������	
�������
������
�	
������
������������	�������������	�	�����	
��	�
���������������������������	
�	
��	�
��	���	����
���������	����������	
������������	�
��
�������	������������
����������������	���	�	��������#�������
���� �������
��
�������
������
��� ����	����
���
������
��������
����$����	��	
��	������
�����
��������������������"���������������
������
�����������������������������
�����
��	� ������� �
��������������	������
�
����	��������%
�����������	�
������
�����	
��	����������
�
��������� ��	����
����������"���������������#��
�� �
���	� ����������
��
�����	�������	�	��	��		��
�����
���� ���������������	��	��	�������������� �����������	��������
��
����	
��	�
�
�������
������	�
����	������������
��������
����
������
�����#�����	���

��	����������	��� ����
������
��	�����
���� ��������
���������
���	��������
����	
��	�
��
���������������
���
�	�������&�������	��
���
��	��������	��������
��������
��
�������
��
��	�
'������������������	���	�	������	��������	���������
��
����������������
�����������
���������	�	�����	������
������
��	����������	����	��	
�����������
���������
��&�	�������
��'� ����(�����
������	����������������)*+*,-./*01�2/.3415�
��������	������������������	���������	
��	���6"����	���	����
��������
�	�������	����	��
��
��		��
���
��������
������
�������	��������
����� ��
��
����	���������������� ��	��
�
�������
�������������	��	
��	�
������	�	��������
����
�78�������"����������������
�����������9�
��
������������		��
���
��&:�$��;�	��<='���	��������	
���������� �������
�����������	������������	�����	�����
���	���������	����
��	� ����������	
�&��:�$�'�������	���	�� ��������
�������������	������ �
������	��
���� ������ ������������
��������������
���	�����	�
��
���������������
������������	
�����������	
��	���� ����9�
��	����
�����������
������	��
��
���������	��������	������������
���	������	���	����
������
��	�	���	�����
��	��	
�������������	����$���	�� �����������
����������	�������
�	���������	������	�
��������	������������	�����>?

@@A�BCDE�FG�HIEEDHJKCKJL�KMNOICDGP�JQD�RKSKJFT�RKCKRD�KGNDOGKGJDEJ�FER�SDJJKES�MIOD�GDOKIUG



����������	�
��
�����������
�
�����������������
��������������
������
��������	���������
��
��

��

��������������������� �������������
������!����� �
�����"����������
��	���
��������������#���������	�������������	����	���������
�
������������
	�������#���	��
���������������$���!�����
��
����������
�����
�������"!����������%�����������
�	�������������	�������
�
���������������	�������	��
���������������	���������
��������&'�
�
������������������	�� ��#�� �� ���������������������������
������������������%����������
�����	������ ���������(���
����
�
������
��� ��"�
$����	���	�����������
���������
��������!�����#����
�	�����������	������������
��� ���)!���������#��������������������
���	���������#��	��*"��������
��������������
��� ������!�������������
����������������������������������
��������#����	��������#��+��	������
���!�
�����	���������,����������-� ���������.������������
���������
!�
��!������	������#�����	����������� �
����
����!�
�����������

'����
��	���
"��
��%�����"����
�
����	���� �����!�
��������
������	���
������"���	������#�
���
������
�"����������������
����������
����������������'���
����!������
� ���������
�	����������������	����������������������
����$��#�	�����������
����������������� �	���� �����#�����������������
����������
�����
��������
/0�1002�3�451678947:;0<�:=�48:7:43>3??8534@�75�7@0�:1708107<�312?08@3?6�3�67851A08�60160�5=�3A014B312�0;01�806?516:C:>:7B�:1�@0>?:1A96086�D3E0�7@0�D567�5=�:7F�



������������	��
	���	������������
	��
���������������	����	
������	�������	
���������	����
�
����	����	�	�������������������
�������	��	
��������
�����		�����������
�������	��	
�����	�����	�	�	���������	
���	���������	���������
	��
��������
������������	
���������	���
���	��������	��	����	��
�������	
�������������
��	
�������������
	������	���
��������������		��		���	�
	���������������
�����	��
�������	��	���������������������	����
��	���	�
	��	���������������������
	�	
���	�������������
		
�	���		��
���	
�����	���������	���	����	��������������	����
	�����		�����	���	��
	���

�	��������������	��
	���
�����������	�������	��������	���	��������	������������
���	�����
	�� ����	�	
��	���
�����
	!��
	���	����	��������	����������	���	�����������������		����
�	���
��������	
	����������
����������������������	�����������������������������
��	��
��	������������������������������	�������	
����
����		������	
�	�	�����������������		�� �
��	���������������	����������
	�����������������	�������		������	��
��
	����
����������
		
�������
�����������	��"	��	�����������������	���	������������������	�����
	���������	������������!������������������
������������	����������
	��
	���
����	
���������
����������
���	�����	
��	
��

#$%$&'()$*+�,)(-.+/���	�012�3454�6�	�����	������	�����������
������������������	�	�������������	��	�7��������	����	�����������
�
�	8����������
�����		�
	!��
	�����������������
�����������������
���	�����
	��������	�����������	�
����9���������������
�������������	��	���	
	���
�
�	����������	����������
���������
	��	��	��	��7���� :;8������
������
����	������������������������	��������	�����
	��
��	������
���������������
	����	��������������������������	�
��	����	�����
	�������	��	�������	��
	��������������������������������
����
�����
	������������
	����"	������	�������������	��
	��	����	�����	���������
	��������	�����
	����������
	���	������		����
�
�	2�
��	�������
��������	��������������	�
	�
���	��<$=('*=$/���	����	
��	
	���	���
	����������	��	�������������������	
��������
�	�������	
	����	
��	����������	
����	��������	��	����	����	�������������
����	�7��
�	�����	���
��������������������������
���
	�
	����
�
���������
��
���������������	�
����	����8��>
�����������	�������	�
��������������	����	������	��������������	
����	�������
����	������7�������
��
	��	�������
����������	8	�����	�
	���	��	����
	�����	�	��?���	����	�	���
�������������	��������
	�����
��	������������@A

BCD�EF�GHF�IJJ�KLMN�OFGPQRS�TQIU�VHQMFM�IJ�IUQRWMIHGIFSQVGPPN



������������	
����
�������
�����
	
��������������

��������������	����	������������������
����
���
���	�������	����������
�������������
��������	
����������	�������������
�
��������������������	�����
		��������	��������������������
������	������
���������
�
�����������������
��	�����	��������������
��������������������
���������
�����������	
������������	��
����	�������	��	
����
�������������
���
��
�����������	�����������������������
������
��������
�����������������
���
���
������������	������������
����������������
�����
��
�������������
�����	�	
����
��������������������
������
��������
����

��



��

��������	�

��������������������������������������������� �����������!�����"#$�"�%�����&�'���������(�������)"�')�

*++,�,-+�.+/.0+�1-/�234+�,-56�7+./7,�./66580+9�:;,-/76�37+�237<+4�15,-�3=�>?@3,523�A;7B�C/1�D;+B+�E/5=+4�;6�7+2/,+0B
��������������F�(������G �H�I�������GJ���&��K�!�H��#L����M����&��L����NK����L��'����'��L��O����%�K��

��������������P�O�O�Q�� ���R��Q�������I����� ��S%���K#&���T����K�&����&��T���K������( �"�



������������	
������������������������������������� �!"#!$!�%&�'����(��'���)����������*�+,�-.�+,/.00/� ��1� ��2��(3332� ��2��(



P H O T O  B Y :  K E N N E T H  F O W L E R 7 A . 0 1 . 0 1  

MAR2024
CEO
REPORT



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

1 

 

RADIANT ROOTS  

a Black Cultural Expo 

 

The LIbrary collaborated with Making 

Change Simcoe County to host their first 

ever Radiant Roots: a Black Cultural Expo 

on Saturday, March 3. This free, family 

friendly event was a celebration of Black 

culture that included crafts, authentic food, 

and artisans as well as music and 

entertainment. One of the highlights from 

the event was a fashion show featuring 

traditional African and Caribbean clothing.  

 

During the event, the Library offered a special guest for Drop-In Storytime and a special edition 

of MakeIt Family. Local author Tricia Khan led storytime, sharing her passion for writing with her 

goal of giving kids a voice, encouraging them to be expressive, confident, kind and learning 

about self-love and self-acceptance. Kids were especially interested in Tricia’s story featuring a 

monster as a symbol of the fears we have to overcome. Local Black artist and poet, Lewis the 

Artist, created a paint-by-number template featuring Black cultural dance forms that was then 

manufactured by the laser cutter. The activity tied together local arts and technology while 

highlighting Black cultural experiences.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Speak UP for diversity & inclusion 
 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

2 

Artwork on Display  
Radiant Roots showcased Canvas for Change, a celebration of artwork by local Black Youth. 

Also on display was the Mosaic Tile project: Culture Across our County. The Mosaic Tile project 

was ongoing through 2022-23 at various events; the mural “Cultures Across Simcoe County” 

was installed for Radiant Roots and remained on display at our Lakeshore Branch until April 1, 

2024. During the expo, attendees were invited to paint their own tile and add to the project.  

 

Making Change described Radiant Roots as an opportunity to celebrate Black History 

throughout the year, after their very busy month of February. The attendance for the event was 

excellent, with over 600 people making their way through the Library during the event. 

Comments from attendees describe it as having “Great energy, great vibes! Especially during 

the fashion show!!”  

 

#ITSTARTS  

Library Champions Allyship 

The #ITSTARTS campaign is organized by the County 

of Simcoe, taking place annually during the month of 

March. As a community champion, the Library 

participated by making time for staff to reflect on what it 

means to be an ally, and continue to fight racism, 

inequality and discrimination. The campaign’s goal is to 

raise public awareness, asking community members to 

take proactive steps to addressing racism and 

discrimination in Simcoe County. Staff and Board were 

invited to fill our campaign cards, writing down how 

#ITSTARTS for them. Some of the responses included: 

unlearning, decolonizing, compassion, learning, 

empathy, collaboration and open minds.  

The Library also uses the campaign to 

promote resources that support 

diversity, anti-racism and inclusion 

including booklists, Kanopy movie and 

documentary links, and tips for being a 

better ally. The community of Innisfil is 

highly diverse, and the Library 

recognizes the importance of uplifting 

and supporting different cultures, values 

and beliefs. While racism and 

discrimination continue, we know that 

being an ally starts with us.  



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

3 

SPARKING CREATIVITY 

1st Innisfil Embers visit the Library 

The Library welcomed 23 members of the 1st Innisfil Embers and seven of their leaders to the 

Lakeshore branch. Many had been to the Library before, including some that remembered 

coming to the Community Room for EarlyON programming and others who had visited the 

HackLAB. During their tour of the branch, the group explored the Digital MediaLAB and used 

the Green Screen to take some creative pictures. Technology is a constant part of children’s 

lives, though not everyone has the same access, and introducing the spaces and opportunities 

available at the Library helps to bridge the gap between those with access and those without.  

After a tour, the group worked with the Library’s LEGO WeDo 2.0 kits to build their own racing 

robots and code them using an iPad. These activities encourage creativity, attention to detail, 

and problem solving. It introduces the concept of coding in an accessible way that allows 

builders to bring their creations to life.  

While the Library’s spaces and technology were enjoyed by the Embers, the most asked 

question of the entire visit was, "Will we have time to take out books?" and "Will we be able to 

sit and read our books in the library?" The group was so excited to learn how to use the catalog, 

search the shelves, place holds, and find exactly what materials they were looking for at the 

Library, and some of the Embers even got their first ever Library card. The visit showcased the 

wide variety of services available at the Library.  

 

Open UP opportunities to strengthen 

connection & engagement with our community 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

4 

FAMILY WELLNESS NIGHT 

Alcona Glen Elementary School 
On March 26th, the Library attended the inaugural Family Wellness Night at Alcona Glen 

Elementary School. Families from across Innisfil were invited to attend the event, with a total of 

73 people in attendance. The event aimed to promote community, belonging, and well-being for 

Innisfil’s children, youth, and families. The Library set up an information table alongside several 

other local service providers, including the Innisfil Food Bank, the YMCA of Simcoe/Muskoka 

(Children & Youth Services and Aquatics), New Path Youth and Family Services, and CFS 

Counselling + Wellbeing. Families walked through the tables, with the opportunity for discussion 

and questions. Many families were already well connected with the Library, but were delighted 

to take home the latest brochure, talk about ComicFest, and hear about school age 

programming.  

The evening included two presentations for parents and caregivers, one focusing on Co-

Regulation and another on Mental Health and Social Media, while all of the children and youth 

were invited to play games, do crafts, and socialize in a separate space. The Library, along with 

Town and YMCA staff, helped to facilitate these activities for children. Activities included an 

engineering challenge using paper cups, an oversized colouring page that was printed in the 

Library's HackLAB, beaded friendship bracelets, and creating gratitude jars. The Library also 

brought several board games and even a Nintendo Switch and Mario Kart to help keep kids 

entertained while caregivers participated in valuable learning opportunities.  

Feedback from participating families was overwhelmingly positive, and there were hopes that 

similar evenings would be possible at other spots around Innisfil. The event was a valuable 

educational and community building opportunity, and was supported by the Building Safer 

Communities Project.  



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

5 

 

COMMUNITY PARTNERS 

New Social Services @ the Library 
Library staff have been forging new connections with community partners, in order to increase 

access to essential services for our community members. This spring, a number of new services 

are available to Library visitors either by drop-in or registration. 

Service Canada Clinics  

Drop-in, Thursdays, March 21, April 25, May 23 from 10-2pm.  

Service Canada will provide assistance with applications for:  

● Social Insurance Numbers (SIN)  

● Employment Insurance (EI) 

● Canada Pension Plan (CPP)  

● Old Age Security (OAS)  

● Guaranteed Income Supplement (GIS)  

● Canada Dental Care Plan (CDCP) 

● Passport Application (review only). 

Newcomer Support Group  

Drop-in, every Thursday from 5:30-7:30pm  

Coming to Canada means adapting to a new language, culture and way of life. The Newcomer 

Support Group supported by CFS will offer a safe place to ask questions, receive help, meet 

new people and integrate into Canadian society.  

Care Partner Support Group, Alzheimer Society  

Registration required, every third Thursday - April 18, May 16, June 20 from 1:30pm-3pm  

Supporting a family member or friend diagnosed with dementia can be an overwhelming 

experience. This group is for care partners of persons living with dementia in early, middle and 

late stages, regardless of their living arrangements. In this safe environment, you can ask 

questions, share experiences and lessons learned.  

Family Law Clinic 

Thursdays (by appointment), April 25, May 23, June 27 from 9:30-4:30pm  

Navigating the Family Court system is often described as complex and confusing. We aim to 

provide resources to assist individuals in gaining the necessary information to make informed 

decisions. After completing the necessary conflict check, individuals will be able to meet with a 

family law lawyer for up to 2 hours in order to provide some background on their situations and 

receive procedural advice, options and what their entitlements could be. This is an opportunity 

to ask questions pertaining to your family situation, receive advice, resources on next steps and 

referrals to various community-based programs. This lawyer can help with obtaining LegalAid 

and accepts LegalAid Certificates. 

Build UP our reputation as a trusted  

community asset 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

6 

 

 

PLANTING EXCITEMENT 

7th Annual Seedy Saturday  

The 7th Annual Seedy Saturday event took place 

at the Lakeshore Branch on Saturday, March 

23rd. This annual event provides an opportunity 

for the community to come together, explore a 

variety of gardening ideas, talk to Master 

Gardeners, and start planning their gardens. The 

event also marks the opening of the Innisfil Seed 

Library, and this year, seeds were given out in 

three categories: easy to grow, not-so-easy to 

grow, and challenging to grow. Customers were 

invited to speak with volunteers from the Seed 

Library about their gardens, soil conditions, and 

experience with gardening, which allowed 

customers to select the best seeds for their 

gardens and skill level.  

 

The event featured over 20 vendors, all with a focus on gardening, pollinator preservation, 

wildlife, and outdoor projects. A vendor from Pembroke, Semences Allumettes (Match Seeds), 

said: “We had a fun day, thank you again for inviting us and the support! All the best and we 

hope we can attend again!”  

We had over 500 customers come through our doors 

during the event. Seedy Saturday’s success 

continues, and this event is much loved by all who 

attend. Overheard comments included “I did enjoy it 

very much, I always feel I’m amongst my people 

when at this event” and “Thanks so much for having 

me it was a lot of fun and such a lovely library and 

group of people!”  

 

The Simcoe County Master Gardeners 

reported they had approximately 70 adults 

and 17 children at their table.  

 

Raise UP the Library’s identity as an  

innovative hub 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

7 

NEW PROGRAM ALERT 

Tween Takeover  

This month we launched a new program connected to the Building Safer Communities Project: 

Tween Takeover. This program invites tweens (youth aged 10-13) to the Library afterschool for 

a safe, free, drop in and out, program. The program aims to reconnect Tweens with the Library 

in an appropriate and productive manner as many people in this age group were dramatically 

impacted by the pandemic and lost opportunities to be a part of the Library community. Many 

Tweens also lost opportunities to learn how to behave in public spaces but are now at an age 

where they sometimes do use spaces independently, so education and safe opportunities are 

needed. One of the first participants shared that she was looking forward to volunteering at the 

Library when she was old enough. Parents shared they were looking forward to bringing their 

children back for the next program. Tween Takeover will allow staff to build stronger 

connections with this age group so we can continue to develop programming better suited to 

their interests. 

 

DROP-IN SUCCESS 

Make It Fun With MakeIT Family 

 

MakeIT Family, a program funded through the Building Safer 

Communities Fund, wrapped up its first 7-week session in 

March. Running twice a week at either the Lakeshore or 

Cookstown Branches of the Library, this program encouraged 

families to come together and create in the HackLAB using a 

variety of machines and equipment. From the beginning of this 

program, families commented on the ease of attending, with 

participants sharing; “It’s great to have a program that doesn’t 

need us to register for it. My kids’ schedule changes week to 

week and it is hard to commit to coming. This way they get to 

experience this space but we can come when it works”.  

 

This program encourages 

family to create together. For 

the first few sessions, parents 

and caregivers were hesitant 

to get involved but as the weeks progressed, their level of 

comfort in the space increased and they became eager to 

jump in and create their own project alongside their child. 

During these sessions, Library Staff actively encourage 

conversation between groups and engage with program 

participants. Over the course of 7 weeks, a total of 847 

customers participated in the MakeIT Family program.  

 

“I haven’t had this much 

fun in a long time. It’s nice 

to be able to sit down and 

enjoy an activity with my 

son. When I’m home I feel 

like there are too many 

other things to do”  

 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

8 

 

 

 

 

 

MARCH BREAK 2024 

750 Participants in March Break Activities 
 

March Break is always a busy week at the Library with many new families, different caregivers, 

and lots of excitement over the variety of accessible Library programming. Between the 48 

programs offered specifically for March Break, there were almost 750 attendees. Special guest 

Patty McLaughlin had 70 people singing and dancing along with her between Cookstown and 

Stroud; the drop in program Lucky Little Leprechauns had 125 people a Stroud, Cookstown, and 

Lakeshore crafting up the cutest Leprechaun doors, creating tricky Leprechaun traps, and 

searching the Library in a St. Patrick’s Day scavenger hunt; and MakeIT Family offered the 

perfect HackLAB drop in for 112 participants who learned about Sublimation and the Laser 

Cutter. March Break also included a variety of volunteer opportunities for high school students, 

with over 30 spots available for volunteers to support programming throughout the week.  

 

 
 

 

 

Light UP pathways to personal &  

professional growth 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

9 

Fairy Tale Tea Party, an all-ages program, brought in all 

kinds of princesses and dragon slayers. To make it easier for 

families with different aged children to enjoy the program 

together, we used centres to provide multiple activities 

simultaneously. Throughout the week, drop in programs 

created opportunities for busy families to engage in 

programming at the Library. Some families arranged 

playdates for their children at the program, while others 

found themselves making new friends as they crafted and 

explored together. These programs foster a strong sense of 

community amongst the participants. 

 

 

Fairy Tale Tea Party explored 

 crafts and games for all ages. 

 

 

Paint With Me and Modge Podge Hodge Podge were both art based programs for 7-12 year 

olds. Craft-based programs are often among the most popular and successful programs at the 

Library. During these programs, the participants were quiet and focused, but it was after the 

program that connections would emerge, as participants happily shared their work with each 

other and talked about their creations. 

 

Gaming is a great way to build community, whether it's at a Family Trivia Night, a Mario Kart 

tournament, or playing Dungeons & Dragons together. Players of all skill levels were welcome 

at all of the Library's game-based programs and the kindness demonstrated by participants at 

each program was remarkable. At Stroud's Mario Mayhem program, one participant gave up 

their prize so that each of the families in attendance could go home with a prize. At Family Trivia 

Night, everyone left the program amped up after an evening of laughter, asking when the next 

Trivia Night would be. Finally, at the Teens Only Game Night, two participants who did not 

originally plan to attend ended up staying for the evening and declared that, "this is the best 

night ever.”  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mario Mayhem at Stroud was 

full of laughter and sharing. 

 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

10 

CRAFTING & COMPUTING WITH SENIORS 

Sociable Seniors Expands to Stroud 

 

Senior crafting programs continue 

to flourish, with the majority of 

programs being full with a waitlist. 

This month, seniors have added 

glitz and glam to customized 

mugs, immersed themselves in 

acrylic painting, and have 

celebrated the start of spring by 

creating bunny flowerpot decor 

pieces and miniature gardens on 

wooden stumps.  

 

Sociable Seniors programs have been an opportunity 

for seniors to engage with the Library, create 

friendships, and stimulate their creativity through arts 

and crafting. Seniors enjoy the opportunity to socialize 

in a welcoming setting, and often have discussions 

about other seniors' activities in the community, hobbies 

they are engaged in, and their personal lives. 

Considering the great success of this programming and 

consistent interest from the senior community, Sociable 

Seniors programs are now being offered once a month 

at the Stroud branch and have seen excellent 

attendance. 

 

Confidently Computing 
Designed to elevate community members’ digital literacy skills, Confidently Computing classes 

have seen a large increase in attendance over recent months. In particular, there has been an 

increased demand for learning basic computer skills and 

programs. Since observing this trend, the Library has aimed 

to consistently offer some basic computing classes each 

month, while also including classes that touch on more 

advanced or unique topics. This month, participants had the 

opportunity to learn basic mouse and keyboarding skills, 

how to navigate their tablets, how to access music 

streaming services, and even the basics of how to use 

artificial intelligence with ChatGPT. Participants have been 

actively engaging in classes by coming prepared with 

questions on the class topics.  

 

“I am starting a new job and 

have been out of the workforce 

for some time. I used to use 

Microsoft Office at my old job all 

the time but it’s been many 

years and I’m sure it has 

changed. Thank you, this has 

been a good refresher on 

computers and how to use 

Microsoft Word.” 

 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

11 

BUILDING SAFER COMMUNITIES FUND 

Quarterly Update: January 1st to March 31st 2024  

A number of key milestones were achieved from the Building Safer Communities Fund this 

quarter. Overall, the project is on track to meet the expected outcomes of supporting families 

and youth. Activities are well underway and seeing consistent and enthusiastic participation 

from children, families, and youth. 

 

Milestone Status Comments 
Hiring part-time programmer Complete A part-time, youth-focused programming position was 

filled to help deliver on the goals to create more youth-
centred activities in Innisfil. 

Coordinate and co-facilitate 
weekly drop-in programs for 
youth at the Innisfil ideaLAB & 
Library and the Town of Innisfil 
in collaboration with the Town. 

In 
Progress 

Due to delays in hiring and a desire to ensure that all 
materials and processes were complete before Teen 
Nights launched, the program will not start until next 
quarter. Library’s inaugural Teen Night will happen 
April 12, 2024. 
Tween Takeover, a weekly drop-in program for youth 
ages 10-13 begins March 27, 2024. 

Develop and facilitate new 
programs and activities that help 
youth develop life skills, hobbies 
and interests, and a sense of 
community while building 
relationships with caring and 
prosocial adults 

In 
Progress 

Staff are currently surveying youth in the Library 
spaces, while providing activities, to help gain an 
understanding of what types of programming they 
would like to see in the future. 20 youth have 
participated in 4 sessions thus far. Activities included 
board, card, and video games with staff support. 

Provide new and/or incremental 
activities for children (ages 6 
and up) and parents/guardians 
that will offer opportunities for 
skill and relationship-building. 

In 
Progress 

Imagination Station (6 events - 85 attendees) and 
MakeIT Family programs (20 events - 801 attendees) 
have been successful bringing families together for 
creative activities to foster family bonds and learn new 
skills. One program focuses on learning with 
technology in our HackLAB spaces, the other on 
activities and programs that can be done with lendable 
tech or no tech at all. 

Conduct outreach about BSCF 
initiatives in collaboration with 
the Town. 

In 
Progress 

Staff attended Family Wellness Night with Town staff 
March 26th. Approximately 73 people attended. 
Library staff also provided activities for children and 
youth to allow parents to engage in the other 
information shared.  

Partnerships Ongoing Bi-weekly meetings with Town and YMCA partners to 
plan Teen Nights ongoing since the beginning of the 
quarter. Monthly meetings with Town partners to 
update about the status of the grant have been 
ongoing since the start of the quarter. 

Other Comments Developing partner programs with grass-roots organizations that 
serve equity-seeking groups is a critical component of the project's 
success. Working with Parents Against Racism Simcoe County 
(PARSC) and UPlift Black the Library is able to create programs 
and services for marginalized children, youth and families. These 
opportunities range from creative-writing and social justice 
workshops to navigating the education system and sneaker-care 
and self-care workshops. 

 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

12 

STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

WTF is AI with Avery Swartz 

Equipping Library Staff with the information and tools to support our community is an important 

component of the Library’s development and training program. This month, Staff heard from the 

Founder and CEO of Camp Tech, best-selling author, and tech expert, Avery Swartz, about how 

Artificial Intelligence (AI) is already a part of our daily lives and how libraries can navigate its 

use. The presentation offered critical information about day-to-day uses of artificial intelligence, 

tips for using generative AI as a tool, and introduced the pros, cons, and unknowns of the 

growing trends in generative AI. 

 

As the Library continues to support information, technological, and media literacies in our 

community, it is critical that we continue to learn and understand these new technologies in 

order to help our community members navigate the changing tech landscape. 

 
 

 

 

 

Above: Avery explains ChatGPT,  

Right: Avery shared about the 

presentation on her LinkedIn page.  



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

13 

APPENDIX A: Level UP! Communications Insights 

Media Outreach & Social Media Response 

DATE PUBLISHED NEWS OUTLET TITLE 

March 1, 2024 Innisfil Today 
Four events you have to check out in South Simcoe this 

weekend 

March 1, 2024 Innisfil Today 

Barrie Today 

On thin ice? Renos, replacement considered for Stroud 

arena 

March 1, 2024 Orillia Matters 

Innisfil Today 

County promoting diversity, inclusion during ITSTARTS 

Month 

March 6, 2024 Bradford Today 
Inaugural gala raises over $22K for Innisfil library 

programs 

March 7, 2024 Simcoe.com Looking for fun March break activities in and around 

Simcoe County? Here are some family friendly things to 

do 

March 8, 2024 Innisfil Today 
Five events you have to check out in South Simcoe this 

weekend 

March 11, 2024 Innisfil Today 
Our go-to list of March break family activities in South 

Simcoe 

March 14, 2024 Innisfil Today ‘Check us out’: HackLAB is Innisfil library’s best-kept 

secret 

March 15, 2024 Innisfil Today 
Six events to check out in South Simcoe this weekend 

March 16, 2024 Barrie Today 
Barrie retiree revels in Innisfil library’s best-kept secret: 

HackLAB 

https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/four-events-you-have-to-check-out-in-south-simcoe-this-weekend-8381429
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/four-events-you-have-to-check-out-in-south-simcoe-this-weekend-8381429
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-sports/on-thin-ice-renos-replacement-considered-for-stroud-arena-8379591
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/on-thin-ice-renos-replacement-considered-for-stroud-arena-8375394
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/on-thin-ice-renos-replacement-considered-for-stroud-arena-8375394
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/county-promoting-diversity-inclusion-during-itstarts-month-8382655
https://www.orilliamatters.com/local-news/county-promoting-diversity-inclusion-during-itstarts-month-8382613
https://www.orilliamatters.com/local-news/county-promoting-diversity-inclusion-during-itstarts-month-8382613
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/inaugural-gala-raises-over-22k-for-innisfil-library-programs-8405776
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/inaugural-gala-raises-over-22k-for-innisfil-library-programs-8405776
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/looking-for-fun-march-break-activities-in-and-around-simcoe-county-here-are-some-family/article_8d81c7b2-7b6d-58a5-af16-b99693808ead.html
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/looking-for-fun-march-break-activities-in-and-around-simcoe-county-here-are-some-family/article_8d81c7b2-7b6d-58a5-af16-b99693808ead.html
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/looking-for-fun-march-break-activities-in-and-around-simcoe-county-here-are-some-family/article_8d81c7b2-7b6d-58a5-af16-b99693808ead.html
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/five-events-you-have-to-check-out-in-south-simcoe-this-weekend-8415753
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/five-events-you-have-to-check-out-in-south-simcoe-this-weekend-8415753
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/our-go-to-list-of-march-break-family-activities-in-south-simcoe-8427716
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/our-go-to-list-of-march-break-family-activities-in-south-simcoe-8427716
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/check-us-out-hacklab-is-innisfil-librarys-best-kept-secret-8439629
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/check-us-out-hacklab-is-innisfil-librarys-best-kept-secret-8439629
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/six-events-to-check-out-in-south-simcoe-this-weekend-8444289
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-entertainment/barrie-retiree-revels-in-innisfil-librarys-best-kept-secret-hacklab-8443145
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-entertainment/barrie-retiree-revels-in-innisfil-librarys-best-kept-secret-hacklab-8443145


7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

14 

March 18, 2024 Simcoe.com 
Innisfil Seed Library’s 7th annual Seedy Saturday event 

set for March 23  

March 18, 2024 Barrie360 
Teen Nights are Coming to Community Hubs Across 

Innisfil 

March 19, 2024 Innisfil Today 
'Grow and thrive': Teen Nights coming to Innisfil 

community hubs 

March 19, 2024 Barrie Today 
Innisfil resident suggests ways to fix Uber's 'tiny little 

bugs' 

March 20, 2024 Innisfil Today 
 

Good Morning, Innisfil 

March 21, 2024 Innisfil Today 
 

Town hosting social event to 'celebrate' local volunteers 

March 22, 2024 Bradford Today 
Five events you need to check out in South Simcoe this 

weekend 

March 22, 2024 FM101 Milton 
 

Get Your Green Thumb Ready 

March 23, 2024 Innisfil Today Good Morning, Innisfil! 

March 25, 2024 Simcoe.com Town of Innisfil launches Teen Nights, free events for 

kids in grade 7 to 12 

March 26, 2024 Innisfil Today 
'National tenant' coming to ex-Larry the Liquidator site in 

Alcona 

March 29, 2024 Bradford Today 
Six events you need to check out in South Simcoe this 

weekend 

 

  

https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/innisfil-seed-librarys-7th-annual-seedy-saturday-event-set-for-march-23/article_95e771d0-a82c-5f04-8e47-89d47c2c3f96.html
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/innisfil-seed-librarys-7th-annual-seedy-saturday-event-set-for-march-23/article_95e771d0-a82c-5f04-8e47-89d47c2c3f96.html
https://barrie360.com/teen-nights-innisfil/
https://barrie360.com/teen-nights-innisfil/
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/grow-and-thrive-teen-nights-coming-to-innisfil-community-hubs-8458268
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/grow-and-thrive-teen-nights-coming-to-innisfil-community-hubs-8458268
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/innisfil-resident-suggests-ways-to-fix-ubers-tiny-little-bugs-8463321
https://www.barrietoday.com/local-news/innisfil-resident-suggests-ways-to-fix-ubers-tiny-little-bugs-8463321
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/good-morning/good-morning-innisfil-8466614
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/town-hosting-social-event-to-celebrate-local-volunteers-8463987
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/five-events-you-need-to-check-out-in-south-simcoe-this-weekend-8491058
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/five-events-you-need-to-check-out-in-south-simcoe-this-weekend-8491058
https://www.miltonnow.ca/2024/03/22/get-your-green-thumb-ready/
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/good-morning/good-morning-innisfil-8489311
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/town-of-innisfil-launches-teen-nights-free-events-for-kids-in-grades-7-to-12/article_4a224b73-44ca-5c9f-8cfc-36a6481145d3.html
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/town-of-innisfil-launches-teen-nights-free-events-for-kids-in-grades-7-to-12/article_4a224b73-44ca-5c9f-8cfc-36a6481145d3.html
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/national-tenant-coming-to-ex-larry-the-liquidator-site-in-alcona-8510309
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/national-tenant-coming-to-ex-larry-the-liquidator-site-in-alcona-8510309
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/six-events-you-need-to-check-out-in-south-simcoe-this-weekend-8523837
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/six-events-you-need-to-check-out-in-south-simcoe-this-weekend-8523837


7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

15 

Facebook Insights (March 1 to 31, 2024) 

FOLLOWERS # OF 

POSTS 

TOTAL 

ENGAGEMENT 

TOTAL IMPRESSIONS 

3,836 

(Followers) 

3,239 Page 

Likes 

62 during 

this period 

708 engagements (601 

reactions, 49 shares, 58 

comments) 

Posts earned 34.4K impressions over 

this period (number of times our posts 

have entered a person's screen) 

Top Organic Post (based on reach): 

Date, March 7, 2024 13.4K Reach 

 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

16 

X (Twitter) Insights (March 1 to 31, 2024) 

FOLLOWERS # OF 

TWEETS 

TOTAL ENGAGEMENT TWEET IMPRESSIONS 

1,552 

 

37 during 

this period 

50 engagements (36 

likes, 8 retweets, 1 

quote tweets, 5 reply) 

2.4K impressions over this period 

(number of times users saw our 

tweets) 

Top Organic Post (based on reach): 

Top Tweet, March 15, 2024 - earned 478 impressions 

 

 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

17 

Instagram Insights (March 1 to 31, 2024) 

FOLLOWERS # OF POSTS TOTAL LIKES & 

REACH 

TOTAL COMMENTS 

2,216 55 during this 

period 

1,943 accounts 

reached. 

1,191 likes.  

20 comments in total on content 

posted during this period 

Top Post (based on engagement): March 1, 2024  542 Reach 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for March 2024 

18 

Top Reel (based on engagement): March 29, 2024  538 Reach 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7b.01.01 

Municipal Council Report 

March 13, 2024 Special Council Meeting 

 

● Meeting not recorded. 

● A Special Council Meeting was held for a workshop on utilities. 

● CAO Jerschow facilitated an interactive session with Council concerning the current 

review of the Town of Innisfil's Wholly-Owned Utility Companies (WOUC). He provided 

an overview of the status of the review process and noted some historical background in 

the creation of each company, objectives that have been articulated by Innisfil Council at 

various points in time, and how well each company has been meeting these previously 

stated objectives, including dividends. It was noted that each WOUC is a separate 

organization that works differently and is governed differently. Council was asked to 

consider several issues, including, are the companies meeting today's objectives, where 

to take the companies next, and who is best to deliver Council's objectives and dualities 

concerning each company. Members of Council provided comments and asked 

questions of clarification which were addressed by the CAO. 

 
March 13, 2024 Council Meeting 

●  Watch the meeting. 

● Council received a delegation from a member of the public, sharing her concerns about 

the Innisfil Uber Services as it relates to using private roads to access main roads, 

missing Innisfil Hotspots such as the Lakeshore Library, and various alterations to route 

times when going from one destination to the next. 

● Council approved adjustments to the Town of Innisfil salary grid following a Non-Union 

 Market Review, effective January 1, 2024. Adjust the 2024 overall Non-Union salary grid 

structure by 4% to fully close the gap to the 50th percentile of the market (effective 

January 1, 2024); and Retain the existing salary grid structure and open up the ‘special 

purpose’ level as the new job rate (i.e. level 6). The 2024 financial implications of 

implementing the recommendations from the Non-Union market review equates to 

approximately $720,000, inclusive of wages and benefits, planned to be funded by 2024 

operating dollars and 2023 operating surplus. Future impacts will be understood during 

the next budget approval process. 

●  ONE Joint Investment Board (JIB) Agreement Amendment and Records Retention 

 By-law - Pdf Town of Innisfil has been a Founding/Participating Municipality in the ONE 

Joint Investment Board. ONE JIB currently invests Monies Not Required Immediately 

(MNRI) on behalf of 11 Ontario municipalities. Investments through ONE JIB form an 

important source of non-tax revenue from funds that are held by the Town for future 

requirements, which supports future infrastructure needs and efficient delivery of 

services. The optimization of investment income will reduce the burden on the tax levy in 

funding future asset replacement costs. 

●  InnService 2024 Water and Wastewater Rates were increased by 5%, effective April 1st. 

● Council received the 2023 Customer Service results 

● Council received the 2023 year-end statement of expenses and remuneration for 

 Council members. 

https://www.youtube.com/live/NesRF2KASS8?si=Yt8B49uFOyIYLzlX
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/15E933290BA9403A91FE76D2D2DC65DD-Non-Union%20Market%20Review.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/15E933290BA9403A91FE76D2D2DC65DD-Non-Union%20Market%20Review.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/EAED2D3163F848C391BCC637A51FE716-ONE%20Joint%20Investment%20Board%20(JIB)%20Agreement%20Amen.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/EAED2D3163F848C391BCC637A51FE716-ONE%20Joint%20Investment%20Board%20(JIB)%20Agreement%20Amen.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/7AE3D4028C734A8E84C3C8D9B9DD0A65-InnService%202024%20Water%20and%20Wastewater%20Rate%20Appro.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/F2B82899E0E7466F9EF0A71255449661-Customer%20Service%20Results%202023%20Year%20in%20Review.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/5BD55B345DCC42739DD9F6FE615276C0-Statement%20of%20Council%20Remuneration%20and%20Expenses%20.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/5BD55B345DCC42739DD9F6FE615276C0-Statement%20of%20Council%20Remuneration%20and%20Expenses%20.pdf


7b.01.01 

Municipal Council Report 

 

 

March 20, 2024 Special Council Meeting 

●  Watch the meeting. 

● A Special Council meeting was held for Planning purposes for a by-law amendment. 

 
March 27, 2024 Council Meeting 

●  Watch the meeting. 

● Council received a presentation from Kempenfelt Bay School 

● Council received an annual update from the Innisfil Community Foundation - $180, 590 

was granted in 2023 

● There were a number of housekeeping by-law amendments 

● Town Staff provided a 2023 year end update of key performance indicators 

● The design and construction contract for 7th Line improvements, from Yonge Street 

to Lake Simcoe, was awarded. Design is underway, with construction planned for 

2026/2027. 

● Friday Harbour Resort's noise exemption application was referred back to staff and 

will return to Council at the meeting on April 24, 2024. 

 
News from the Community 

● March 2, 2024 Town Hall hosted the Innisfil Indian Association’s She-roes Gala to 

 celebrate International Women’s Day 

●  On thin ice? Renos, replacement considered for Stroud arena - Innisfil News 

●  Make a chilly splash, keep life wild at Take the Plunge - Innisfil News 

●  'A delicate balance': Innisfil council approves Orbit plan - Innisfil News 

●  Powerful move: Innisfil deploys first electric vehicle to fleet - Innisfil News 

●  Some tax-filing tips from Innisfil's newest financial advisors - Innisfil News 

●  ‘So grateful’: Polar Bear Dip earns $8K for Innisfil Food Bank - Innisfil News 

●  Orbit's low-carbon energy plan requires private cash, town says - Innisfil News 

●  What'd we pay? Innisfil council's 2023 remuneration revealed - Innisfil News 

●  'Grow and thrive': Teen Nights coming to Innisfil community hubs - Innisfil News 

●  Uber rides could run smoother, Innisfil resident tells council - Innisfil News 

●  'Balancing act': Innisfil water, wastewater rates set to rise 5% - Innisfil News 

●  ‘Looking for a good place’: Hundreds seek next career in Innisfil - Innisfil News 

●  South Simcoe police ‘back in the schools now,’ says chief - Innisfil News 

●  Town hosting social event to 'celebrate' local volunteers - Innisfil News 

●  ‘Water is life’: NDP rolls out motion to protect Lake Simcoe - Innisfil News 

●  Come together: Innisfil launches free Family Wellness Nights - Innisfil News 

●  Police chief, town CAOs, constable sit atop local 'Sunshine List' - Innisfil News 

https://www.youtube.com/live/VxG8t1eU2r0?si=MuAOSaFh81R_PfAp
https://www.youtube.com/live/zlyZ4k37Tz4?si=jycWZAO8Yed0dvzE
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/B17F00805A2F41F38C36903FF353440B-2024.03.27%20ICF%20Update%20to%20Council.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/20448A99F3ED46C989276B81D03FB30F-2023%20Year%20End%20Update%20-%20Key%20Performance%20Metrics%20.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/live/s_cUxOKDFR0?si=1tPppfuLiZ_0fDaD
https://www.youtube.com/live/s_cUxOKDFR0?si=1tPppfuLiZ_0fDaD
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/on-thin-ice-renos-replacement-considered-for-stroud-arena-8375394
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/make-a-chilly-splash-keep-life-wild-at-take-the-plunge-8381196
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/a-delicate-balance-innisfil-council-approves-orbit-plan-8389656
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/powerful-move-innisfil-deploys-first-electric-vehicle-to-fleet-8393974
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/some-tax-filing-tips-from-innisfils-newest-financial-advisors-8395817
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/so-grateful-polar-bear-dip-earns-8k-for-innisfil-food-bank-8415995
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/orbits-low-carbon-energy-plan-requires-private-cash-town-says-8429920
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/who-got-what-innisfil-council-pay-for-2023-revealed-8429932
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/grow-and-thrive-teen-nights-coming-to-innisfil-community-hubs-8458268
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/uber-rides-could-run-smoother-innisfil-resident-tells-council-8456376
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/balancing-act-innisfil-water-wastewater-rates-set-to-rise-5-8463874
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/looking-for-a-good-place-hundreds-seek-next-career-in-innisfil-8472984
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/south-simcoe-police-back-in-the-schools-now-says-chief-8488671
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/town-hosting-social-event-to-celebrate-local-volunteers-8463987
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/water-is-life-ndp-rolls-out-motion-to-protect-lake-simcoe-8495800
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/come-together-innisfil-launches-free-family-wellness-nights-8496695
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/police-chief-town-caos-constable-sit-atop-local-sunshine-list-8526068


7b.01.01 

Municipal Council Report 

 

 

News from the County: 

●  County promoting diversity, inclusion during ITSTARTS Month - Innisfil News 

●  ‘The numbers don’t work’: Hospital expansion needs funding - Innisfil News 

●  County eyeing ways to fix 'dysfunctional' Landlord Tenant Board - Innisfil News 

●  Cast away: Local study makes case for attracting film production - Innisfil News 

●  Georgian, YMCA aim to explore the Future of Belonging - Innisfil News 

●  Springwater library board counters 'misconceptions' at council - Innisfil News 

●  Tax talk, property assessment take centre stage at county council - Innisfil News 

●  Insurance firms 'not our friends' as county seeks buying power - Innisfil News 

 

 
News from the Province 

●  Province provides $3M to improve 911 services in Barrie, Innisfil - Innisfil News 

●  Barrie hospital VP takes on new position with Ontario Health - Innisfil News 

●  New health funding brings primary-care teams closer to home - Innisfil News 

●  RVH expansion plans remain 'in the pipeline,' says health minister - Innisfil News 

●  Ontario's environment minister talks 'prudent' budget, Lake Simcoe - Innisfil News 

https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/county-promoting-diversity-inclusion-during-itstarts-month-8382655
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/the-numbers-dont-work-hospital-expansion-needs-funding-8391700
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/county-eyeing-ways-to-fix-dysfunctional-landlord-tenant-board-8432539
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/cast-away-local-study-makes-case-for-attracting-film-production-8432356
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/georgian-ymca-aim-to-explore-the-future-of-belonging-8460468
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/springwater-library-board-counters-misconceptions-at-council-8496037
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/tax-talk-property-assessment-take-centre-stage-at-county-council-8515751
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/insurance-firms-not-our-friends-as-county-seeks-buying-power-8516460
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/province-provides-3m-to-improve-911-services-in-barrie-innisfil-8385006
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/barrie-hospital-vp-takes-on-new-position-with-ontario-health-8395045
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/new-health-funding-brings-primary-care-teams-closer-to-home-8496994
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/rvh-expansion-plans-remain-in-the-pipeline-says-health-minister-8497873
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/ontarios-environment-minister-talks-prudent-budget-lake-simcoe-8522656


JHSC Meeting Agenda 

MEETING DATE: Thursday, March 21, 2024 

TIME: 1:00PM 

LOCATION: Ops Meeting Room 2 and Teams 

CO-CHAIRs: Management Co-Chair – Eric Chudzinski 
Worker Co-Chair – Jennifer Sheremeto 

MINUTES: Jennifer Miyasaki 

ATTENDANCE: Eric Chudzinski, Jennifer Sheremeto, Nick Ayres, Elishia LaRose, Jennifer 
Miyasaki, Kristi Prentice, Kyle Stitt, Paul Tomaszewski, Sierra Warren 

GUEST(S): Oliver Jerschow (CAO), Vivian Lough, Ben Dennis 

REGRETS: 

APPROVED MINUTES: 

Ken Schuyler 

Worker Member Acting Co-Chair     Management Co-Chair 
Jennifer Sheremeto      Eric Chudzinski 

Item Agenda Item Lead Item Details 
ACTION & NOTES 

1. Call Meeting 
to Order 

Co-Chair - Time – opened
- Meeting started at 1:03 p.m.
- The Committee members and guests did a round of

introductions

2. 
TOI CAO 

Oliver 
Jerschow 

- Guest Speaker

- Oliver expressed gratitude on behalf of the Town on
the importance of the Committee and the work they
do. He emphasized the “Joint” in JHSC, and the
value, knowledge, and experience each of the
members brings to improving safety throughout the
Town.

- The committee appreciated and thank Oliver for his
attendance and continual support for safety.

3. Approval of 
Previous 
Minutes 

Co-Chair 2024.02.15 JHSC 

Meeting Agenda 

Minutes Draft.docx 

- Elishia motioned to approve the minutes of the

previous meeting.

- Seconded by Jen S.

- All in favour; Motion Carried.

4. JHSC 
members 

Co-Chair 2024.02.13 JHSC 
Members February 
2024.docx 

- Change in Library Rep - Worker Member; Jen M. is

stepping down from the Committee; Vivian Lough

will join the committee as the new Library Rep –

Worker Member

- Paul T. (Fleet Worker Member) is stepping down

from the committee, Ben Dennis to take over

- Ken S. (Management Member) is stepping down

from the committee, pending replacement

7e.01.01

https://mfiles.innisfil.ca/link/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/show?object=3C3737FE-D45C-414B-8FA1-E1882B25E2DF&objid=0-797563
https://mfiles.innisfil.ca/link/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/show?object=3C3737FE-D45C-414B-8FA1-E1882B25E2DF&objid=0-797563
https://mfiles.innisfil.ca/link/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/show?object=3C3737FE-D45C-414B-8FA1-E1882B25E2DF&objid=0-797563
https://mfiles.innisfil.ca/link/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/show?object=B6F1E030-9B3F-4FFF-981B-ABE62459BC96&objid=0-798114
https://mfiles.innisfil.ca/link/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/show?object=B6F1E030-9B3F-4FFF-981B-ABE62459BC96&objid=0-798114
https://mfiles.innisfil.ca/link/247A7B9A-1309-4C95-B527-D9FE5C5354EE/show?object=B6F1E030-9B3F-4FFF-981B-ABE62459BC96&objid=0-798114


 

Page 2 of 4 
 

- The Committee thanked the members stepping 

down, for their time and work on the committee, and 

dedication to improving safety! 

- New members were welcomed to the committee.  

- The new member list will be updated and sent out 

for posting 

5. 
Workplace 
Inspections 

WHIMIS 
LOTO 

Co-Chair Roundtable 

discussions  

Jennifer M – All locations were inspected, noting only 

minor deficiencies which are in process of being 

corrected. Will train Vivian on inspections on April 15 

Nick- Refresh at the park; challenging to inspect.  No 

staff will be working out of that location for the time 

being.  Will inspect when work is completed. 

Paul - Ben was shown how to inspect; need access to 

MOAR; will still need to complete IRC. A deficiency was 

noted at Fleet – hose needed repair.  

ACTION – Eric to submit IT request to get MOAR 

access for Ben. 

Jen S.- Rizzardo had areas of concern that were 

reported to Ops.  Rusty chair outside by playground; 

garbage and skids near shipping area to be cleaned up; 

accessible parking sign was down – to be addressed;  

Town Square – issues with people using stairs that are 

still closed for season; housekeeping in electrical room 

by rink – cluttered; needs to be cleaned up.             

EcDev – people were using the space; no issues to 

report other than a cluttered floor that was cleaned up 

upon inspection. 

Kristi -  Town Hall was inspected; a fire extinguisher 

was missed during last inspection; fridge in lunchroom 

needs to be cleaned out; some clutter that was cleared 

up during inspection. 

Sierra – Ops done first, one bay was cluttered; moving 

forward will log in MOAR as deficiency; Knock – 

everything was fine; Churchill Community Center – still 

cords on floor; needs to be cleaned up. 

Elishia – Stroud Arena – unsecured ladder; Lefroy 

Arena – issue with door not shutting property; Salt Dome 

– some fire extinguishers tags out of date; were fixed 

after noting the issue.  

ACTION – Eric to review fire extinguisher inspection 

requirements in vehicles/equipment and confirm 

compliance. 

Eric – Appreciate everyone’s diligence and attention to 

detail. Seeing a lot of good findings from these 

inspections! Would like to get the committees thoughts 

on repeat times and how to approach. Interested in 

ideas for H&S board improvements. 

Discussed how to best deal with repeat items. 



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

ACTION – Eric to pull list of Repeat findings to review at 

future meetings. 

ACTION – Eric to update Town Hall H&S board based 

on committee comments and send picture example to 

committee for feedback and standardization. 

6. 
 

SOP’s 
Corporate 
Policies 

Co-Chair Any updates for 

discussion? 

- WSIB Safety Excellence Program – In progress. 

- Safety Talks – 2024 Corporate schedule was 

presented. 

7. Workplace 
Incidents & 
Accidents  

Co-Chair 

1. Report on 

accidents since 

last meeting 

accidents 

(February 2024) 

 

2. 2023 Year in 

Review 

- Eric provided an overview of the incidents for 

February (4 incidents – Slip on ice; vehicle incidents 

due to plow hitting a maintenance hole cover, and 

one injury (no first aid) because of the above vehicle 

incident).  

- Eric provided an overview of 2023 incident statistics, 

and recommendations which are in progress 

8. Budget & 
Training 

Co-Chair  

1. Budget 
 

2. Training 

- Budget is on track 

- Ordering new Green books, pending delivery 

 

- Additional certification training will be required for 

new members (at least Part 1 this year). 

ACTION – Eric to coordinate Part 1 training for new 

members. 

- Workplace inspection training for new members. 

Paul and Jen M. are training new members. 

- Upcoming training for Operations Staff; forklift 

training, elevated work areas, first aid; next year, 

chipper and chainsaw training 

9. 
JHSC  
Other 

Business 

All 
Members 

 
1. Review/update 

inspection schedule 
(RE: change in 
members) 
 

2. New Committee 
Secretary 
(volunteers/vote) 

 
3. JHSC BBQ (Initial 

planning) 
 

- Updated workplace inspection schedule based on 
changes to members. 
ACTION – Eric to send out updated Workplace 

Inspection Schedule to members. Members to post 
on H&S during next inspection. 

- Sierra volunteered; there being no other volunteers, 
Jen M motioned that Sierra be named secretary of 
the Committee; Seconded by Jen S.  Motion carried.  
Sierra Warren is acclaimed secretary of the JHSC. 

- Circulate last year’s project plan to begin assigning 
tasks and planning event. 

 

10. ACTION 
ITEMS 

Follow up 

Co-Chair 

Review of Action 
items from January 
18, 2024 meeting 
minutes. 
 

ACTION – members to start thinking about new safety 

Slogan and Theme for 2024. Perhaps for 2024 we 

commit to another event around the National Day of 

Mourning (e.g. speaker). Everyone to brainstorm ideas 

and we will produce a plan for 2024. – Completed – 

speaker being coordinated 

ACTION – Members to post updated Member List on 

H&S Boards during next inspection. – Completed – 

action can be closed. 



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

ACTION – Eric to send Kyle an overview and link to 

mySDS – Completed – action can be closed. 

ACTION - If any member would like Kyle to join your 

inspections, please reach out to him to coordinate. – In 

progress 

ACTION – Eric to review concerns, near misses, and 

opportunities to improve safety when patching with 

Roads management. Additionally, to seek information 

from other local municipalities on patching practices, for 

comparison. – In progress 

11. Close 
Meeting 

Co-Chair Enter the time of the 
meeting closed. 

The meeting closed at 3:01 p.m. 

 



 

 
INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY STAFF REPORT 

 
 

STAFF REPORT NO. LIB-07-2024 
 

DATE: April 15, 2024 
 

TO: Innisfil Public Library Board  
 

FROM: Erin Scuccimarri, CEO 
 

SUBJECT: Library Associations and Organizations 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
THAT Staff Report LIB-07-2024 be received as information. 
   

 

INTRODUCTION: 
 
The Innisfil ideaLAB & Library is connected with a variety of associations, groups and 
organizations that work alongside public libraries at both the local level and internationally. This 
report will serve as a guide to highlight a number of these entities, their mandates and affiliation 
with Innisfil. 

 

 

LOCAL: 

 

Simcoe County Library Working Group 
After the dissolution of the Simcoe County Library Cooperative, the CEOs of the various library 
systems in Simcoe County developed a working group, that also includes library systems located 
in Simcoe County that were not members of the cooperative. The group meets quarterly to 
coordinate programs and services, and share best practices. A sub-set of this group, including 
Innisfil, continue to access shared services paid for and administered through the County. 
 

PROVINCIAL: 

 

Ministry of Tourism Culture and Sport 
Provincial responsibility for public library service rests with the Programs and Services Branch 
within the Culture Division of the Ontario Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport. The Minister and 
his or her staff are responsible for the administration of the Public Libraries Act and for the 
development of provincial policies for public library systems across Ontario. The Ministry publishes 
reports on several library indicators through the Ontario Public Library Statistics programs. These 
statistics are compiled using self-reported data from the Annual Survey of Public Libraries, which 

 
8a.01.01 



STAFF REPORT #LIB-07-2024 – Library Associations and Organizations 
 

 

2 
 

 

 

is completed by library staff every spring. The Ministry provides direct support of local public library 
service through an annual, per household grant to the local library. In addition to direct support to 
public libraries, the provincial government also funds the Ontario Library Service. 
  

Ontario Library Service (OLS) 
The Ontario Library Service (OLS) delivers programs on behalf of the Ministry. OLS provides 
services to expand local library collections and realize economies of scale (interlibrary loan, 
consortia purchasing, pooled collections, licensing of e-collections), train staff and trustees and 
provide information and expertise for local library issues. The OLS oversees the Board 
Assemblies, which provide library board members with opportunities to share information and hear 
how other boards deal with issues, like the ones you face, in governing a public library. Currently, 
Sue Bennett represents Innisfil on the OLS Board Assembly.    

Federation of Ontario Public Libraries (FOPL) 
The Federation of Ontario Public Libraries (FOPL) represents Ontario’s 363 public library systems 
exceeding 1,000 branches in virtually every Ontario community. A 23-member Board made up of 
representatives from various caucuses governs FOPL; Board Chair Anne Smith currently sits on 
the Board, representing the Small/Medium Caucus. FOPL’s strategic focus includes Advocacy, 
Marketing, and Research & Development. They provide various levels of government with a view 
of public libraries as a united, relevant and integral component for economic and community 
development worthy of strong and continued support. Innisfil pays a membership fee to belong to 
FOPL. 

 

Ontario Library Association (OLA) 
Founded in 1900, the Ontario Library Association (OLA) is the oldest continually operating non-
profit library association in Canada. With more than 4,000 members, the OLA is also the largest 
library association in the country. They provide opportunities for library workers and supporters to 
share their experience and expertise, and give profile to the librarians, library workers and trustees 
in the school, college, university, public and special libraries of Ontario. They organize province-
wide programs for learning, networking, recognizing, influencing and celebrating within the library 
industry. The OLA leads the planning for Ontario Public Library Week and Ontario’s participation in 
Canadian Library Month, hosts the annually library Super Conference in Toronto and leads the 
Forest of Reading program. Various Innisfil staff and Board members have an OLA Membership. 
 
Divisions within the OLA that Innisfil is associated with include: 
 

OLBA - The Ontario Library Boards’ Association (OLBA) is a division of the Ontario Library 
Association (OLA) that represents public library board members (trustees) on issues 
relating to their areas of responsibility. The work of the OLBA is primarily to build a 
professional development (training) program that is responsive to common issues of 
concern. It provides information materials and training forums for advancing board 
development. The OLBA, in connection with OLA, hosts the annual Board Bootcamp as 
part of the OLA Super Conference. 



STAFF REPORT #LIB-07-2024 – Library Associations and Organizations 
 

 

3 
 

 

 

 

OLITA - The Ontario Library and Information Technology Association (OLITA) is a 
community passionate about exploring the use of technology in information management 
organizations. Innisfil staff have sat on the OLITA Council, and attended their yearly Digital 
Odyssey conference.   
 

OPLA - The Ontario Public Library Association (OPLA) is a division of the Ontario Library 
Association (OLA) and represents librarians and library staff who work in public libraries in 
Ontario on issues of common concern. 

Activities of OPLA include an annual conference, RA in a Day event, lobbying and 
advocacy, publications, continuing education, and the OPLA-L listserv for members. OPLA 
provides an opportunity for public librarians and public library workers in Ontario to interact 
at various levels in a variety of forums and facilitates activities to respond to members’ 
needs and concerns. The OPLA has various subcommittees that Innisfil has participated on 
including Community-Led Libraries Committee and the Marketing ThinkTank. 

 

Administrators of Medium-sized Public Libraries of Ontario (AMPLO) 
AMPLO consists of CEOs of medium-sized public libraries in Ontario. Objectives of this group 
include providing a forum for discussion of issues common to the administration of medium-sized 
public libraries in all areas of Ontario, agreeing on common approaches to the provincial 
government, and initiating, funding or receiving studies which are of common concern. Innisfil pays 
a membership fee to belong to AMPLO. 

 

Administrators of Rural and Urban Public Libraries of Ontario (ARUPLO) 
The Administrators of Rural and Urban Public Libraries of Ontario (ARUPLO) represent multi-
branch public library systems that provide coordinated library services. Member libraries serve 
upper or single-tier municipalities encompassing rural communities that may also include larger 
urban centres. ARUPLO develops guidelines for Rural/Urban Public Library Systems that serve as 

targets for a library to provide an appropriate level of service for its community.  
 

Ontario Public Library Guidelines Monitoring and Accreditation Council (OPLG) 
The Ontario Public Library Guidelines Monitoring and Accreditation Council (OPLG) develops, 
monitors and revises a series of guidelines which are community-based norms for public libraries 
and public library development in Ontario. The Council arranges Accreditation Audits for those 
interested in becoming an accredited library in Ontario. Innisfil received accreditation in 2022, 
which remains valid for 5 years.  



STAFF REPORT #LIB-07-2024 – Library Associations and Organizations 
 

 

4 
 

 

 

NATIONAL: 

 

Canadian Federation of Library Associations (CFLA) 
The Canadian Federation of Library Associations (CFLA) is s the national voice of Canada’s library 
associations. Their purpose is to champion library values, and to influence national and 
international public policy impacting libraries and their communities. They work to influence public 
policy, advance library excellence, and raise the visibility of libraries in Canada to advance national 
intellectual, social, economic, and cultural success. CFLA, in conjunction with Ex Libris 
Association, awarded Innisfil with the W. Kaye Lamb Award for services to seniors this year. (Ex 
Libris Association provides a forum and serves as a voice for those interested in the history and 
current state of librarianship, Canadian libraries, and archives, and membership is primarily made 
up of retired library and information professionals.)  
 

Canadian Urban Libraries Council (CULC) 
The Canadian Urban Libraries Council’s (CULC) mission is to facilitate advocacy, collaboration, 
and research that strengthens and promotes the value of Canada’s urban libraries as integral to a 
vibrant democracy, a strong economy, and thriving communities. In partnership with the University 
of Toronto, CULC offers a program called PLLeaders (formerly Public Library Leadership Fellows 
Program) which brings together compelling case studies, foundational leadership principles, the 
sharing and mentorship of exemplary leaders, recent research, and the close collaboration of a 
national cohort of peers. Two Innisfil staff members have participated in this unique program. 
 

Centre for Equitable Library Access (CELA) 
The Centre for Equitable Library Access (CELA) serves Canadians living with a print disability, and 
partners with public libraries to deliver services locally. CELA reformats commercially produced 
content at their facility in Toronto, converting print to Braille, audio, and digital formats. Library staff 
access CELA’s collections on behalf of residents, and register individuals for CELA user accounts 
(users are required to have a membership with their local library). CELA provides training on their 
services as well as strategies for serving those with a print disability.  
 
 

INTERNATIONAL: 
 

American Library Association (ALA) 
The American Library Association (ALA) is a professional organization based in the United States 
that focuses on promoting libraries and librarianship. It was founded in 1876 and is one of the 
oldest and largest library associations in the world. The ALA advocates for libraries and library 
services, provides professional development opportunities for librarians, sets standards for library 
practices and ethics, and publishes materials related to library science and information science. 
The association also hosts conferences and events where librarians can network and share ideas. 
 

 

Public Library Association (PLA) 
The Public Library Association (PLA) is one of the largest divisions of the ALA and is dedicated to 
supporting and advancing the work of public libraries and public librarians across the United 
States. The PLA provides resources, professional development opportunities, advocacy support, 



STAFF REPORT #LIB-07-2024 – Library Associations and Organizations 
 

 

5 
 

 

 

and networking opportunities for public library professionals. Its mission is to strengthen public 
libraries and their services to the communities they serve. The PLA hosts a conference biennially 
and is considered one of the premier events in the field of public librarianship. It brings together 
thousands of public library professionals, including librarians, administrators, educators, and 
vendors, from across the United States and beyond. The conference typically features a wide 
range of programming, including keynote presentations, panel discussions, workshops, and 
interactive sessions covering various topics relevant to public libraries. A number of Innisfil staff 
are members of PLA. 
 
 

International Federation of Library Associations and Institutions (IFLA) 
The International Federation of Library Associations and Institutions (IFLA) is a global organization 
representing libraries and information services worldwide. Founded in 1927, IFLA promotes high 
standards, facilitates cooperation among libraries, shares expertise, and advocates for policies 
supporting access to information. It hosts conferences, publishes standards, and supports 
specialized groups focusing on specific areas of librarianship. Overall, IFLA plays a key role in 
advancing the role of libraries and information services internationally. 
 



Policy Changes Summary 
 

 
10a.01.01  OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Information Technology Policy 

#2024-10 

 Minor wording and formatting changes 

 Removal of the following Definition: 
o  ODBC: Open Database Connectivity.  An industry standard method for 

access to different database systems.   

 Addition of the following under the heading Disaster Recovery/System Integrity:  
o Firewall: I.T shall be responsible for configuring and maintaining library 

firewalls.  One firewall will be setup for each branch.  Only services required 
for the safe and efficient use of library technology will be allowed through the 
firewall.  All connections originating from an unknown network shall pass 
through a firewall. Any alerts created by the firewalls will be regularly 
monitored by IT staff 

 Removal of the following under the heading Remote Access: 
o Firewall: All connections originating from an unknown network shall pass 

through a firewall.   
 

10.01.01 



SUBJECT:     INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POLICY 

Policy No:  2024-10 

Date:  April 15, 2024   

Review Date: April 2028 

Pages: 11 (including appendices)  

PURPOSE 

To provide guidelines and establish procedures for the design, security and use of all 

computer systems and networks owned and/or controlled by the Innisfil Public Library 

Board. 

POLICY  

General  

The success of any corporate computer network is dependent on an organized and 

systematic approach to all aspects of the system including design, security, 

implementation, training and maintenance. It is imperative that those who use the 

Library’s computer network be given guidance, training and information regarding the 

importance of their contribution to the security and reliability of all systems. 

Application 

These guidelines apply to all employees, the Innisfil Public Library Board and any other 

authorized persons, who use the Library’s personal computers and peripherals. 

Definitions 

Firewall: Network device that analyzes and filters traffic traveling into or out of a 

network. 

Uninterruptible Power Supply: A device that will operate designated systems on a 

battery in the event of a power outage.  Generally, it can be used to shutdown systems 

in the event of a prolonged outage. 

10a.01.01



  

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POLICY #2024-10                                  Page 2 of 11 
 

UPS: An acronym for Uninterruptible Power Supply. 

 

VPN: Virtual Private Network.  An encrypted connection through a public network such 

as the Internet. 

 

Windows Active Directory: The system Windows Servers use for storing user 

accounts and associated access rights. 

 

Guidelines 

Responsibilities 

All Users:    

 Must comply with guidelines, policies and procedures. 

 

Library Management:   

 Must enforce policies and procedures; 

 Must ensure that new employees receive and understand all guidelines, policies 

and procedures. 

 

Information Technology:  

 Must report violation of guidelines to Management. 

 

Information Technology (I.T.) Staff 

Organization 

The Information Technology department is directed by a Systems Manager and may 

include other full or part-time Staff and students. The current organizational structure of 

staff is available upon request.  I.T. Staff is responsible for questions regarding 

hardware, software or systems security.  Library Staff will work with the Town to share 

expertise, support and resources when possible. 

 

Training 

Newly hired I.T. Staff will be expected to have the training and qualifications as outlined 

in the appropriate job description.  Existing I.T. Staff shall update skills through regular 

training.  Training may consist of classroom or online courses, user conferences or self-

study (with exam).  Reimbursement for training will be made based on the Board’s 

current training policies. 

 

Regular Hours of Work 

I.T. Staff work 35 hours per week, Monday to Friday, between the hours of 9:00 a.m. 

and 5:00 p.m. 

 

After Hours Work 

From time to time, systems work must be done after hours.   

 

Stand-By 

I.T. Staff will be available for urgent problems that happen after hours.   



  

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POLICY #2024-10                                  Page 3 of 11 
 

 

Support 

I.T. is available for technical support between 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on regular 

business days.  Preferred method of contact is through email.    

 

Response Times 

I.T. Staff response times (time to respond to a problem, not necessarily to have it 

resolved) are as follows: 

   Regular Hours - 1 hour 

   After Hours -  3 hours 

 

Servers & Workstations 

Servers 

Preferred server operating systems are currently supported versions of Microsoft 

Windows Server, and Linux.  Servers shall be covered under warranty and will be 

replaced or have warranty coverage extended before the expiry date. 

 

Workstations (Personal Computers) 

Preferred workstation operating systems are currently supported versions of Microsoft 

Windows or OS X (Mac).  Workstations shall be purchased with three (3) year warranty 

coverage and be no more than one year out of warranty coverage before being 

replaced. 

 

Disaster Recovery/System Integrity 

Virus software 

All computers connected to the Library’s computer network shall be protected against 

viruses and other malicious software.  Whenever possible, this software shall be 

centrally managed, monitored and updated.  

 

Backups 

I.T. Staff shall be responsible for daily backups and offsite storage of any data files on 

the network servers (see Procedure IT-01). Should a restore from a server be required, 

I.T. Staff must be contacted. 

  

All data is to be stored on network servers.  If some files are stored on local 

workstations or memory sticks, it will be the responsibility of the computer user to 

maintain backup copies of any such software, databases or documents. If such 

documents are lost, removed or otherwise are missing, I.T. will assist on a “best effort 

basis” to restore the information from the backup medium. 

 

Firewall 

I.T shall be responsible for configuring and maintaining library firewalls.  One firewall will 

be setup for each branch.  Only services required for the safe and efficient use of library 

technology will be allowed through the firewall.  All connections originating from an 

unknown network shall pass through a firewall. 



  

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POLICY #2024-10                                  Page 4 of 11 
 

Any alerts created by the firewalls will be regularly monitored by IT staff 

 

System Logs 

Log files are created from many system devices including firewalls, backup systems and 

virus software.  These logs shall be monitored regularly.   

 

Security Verification 

To verify security, a third party security audit shall be performed at least every two 

years.  This audit should verify existing security and make recommendations on areas 

for improvement.  This audit should be done in coordination with the Town of Innisfil IT 

Department.  This audit should extend to general building security in addition to system 

security settings. 

 

Test Restore 

To ensure valid system backups, periodic data restores shall be performed.  Restoring 

individual files and training/development databases will be considered a test restore; 

however, when spare equipment is available, a more complex test restore shall be 

performed annually.   

 

UPS Systems 

To protect against power failures, brownouts and power surges, all servers and network 

equipment should be powered via an Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS).  Whenever 

possible, UPS systems should be connected to a circuit that will be powered by a 

backup generator during power failures.  UPS systems shall be tested regularly to verify 

functionality and battery condition.  Testing should be indicated in a daily logbook. 

 

Physical Access to Servers 

Servers shall be in a locked area secure from regular traffic.  Key holders for this area 

shall be restricted to I.T. Staff and the Library CEO or designate. 

 

User Accounts 

All system users shall have an account with a logon name in the format of first initial last 

name.  Generic account names such as ‘circ’ will be used only for specific applications.  

Groups will be used to organize similar users (such as Library Administration).  Each 

user will be a member of one or more appropriate user groups.  Unattended 

workstations must either be logged off or locked.  Users are responsible for what 

happens on their workstation while they are logged on.  Automatic locking of 

workstations shall occur after 30 minutes of inactivity.  User environments will be 

controlled through user policies. 

 

Staff Changes 

Library Administration shall notify I.T. in advance of any staff hires, moves, extended 

absence, retirement or termination.  I.T. will modify the user’s computer account as 

required.  Accounts of users leaving the Library’s employ will be disabled and 

subsequently removed.  (See Appendix C - Procedure IT-02) 



  

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POLICY #2024-10                                  Page 5 of 11 
 

 

Passwords 

Each user shall have a private password to access the system(s).  All passwords shall 

be kept private and must not be written down.  Whenever possible, systems will enforce 

password complexity.  Where systems are capable, user accounts will be locked after 

several failed logins.  These will automatically reset after a period of time.  (See 

Appendix C - Procedure IT-03) 

 

Permissions/Access Rights 

Permissions and access rights shall be assigned to users either directly or through user 

groups.  Permissions will be centrally managed through Windows Active Directory or 

security tools provided by specific applications.  Requests for changes in access levels 

must be in writing from the user’s manager, CEO or designate.  Access will only be 

granted with the approval of the CEO. 

 

Remote Access 

Remote access to the Library’s computer systems will be through the internet.  All 

remote connections shall be configured and maintained by I.T. Staff.   

 

Staff 

Remote access for Staff will be available through VPN when information is stored on 

library servers.  Cloud based applications will be available without VPN being required.  

Remote access to the system may be removed by the IT Manager, if necessary, for 

security reasons. 

 

Vendor/Support 

Software vendors will be allowed remote access for purposes of software support.  

Access will be through a secure connection and only to the appropriate server hosting 

their application. (See Appendix C - Procedure IT-04) Before any access is allowed, 

vendors must sign the “Terms for Remote Access” agreement (See Appendix B). 

 

Branch Locations 

Branch locations are Library facilities separate from the main server location. These 

facilities will have access to the main server location configured by I.T. Staff.  

Connection may include private fibre controlled by Access Control Lists (ACLs) or VPN 

through the public Internet.  All policies include computers and users at these external 

locations. 

 

Guest Access 

Guest access refers to users not employed by the Innisfil Public Library and/or 

computers not owned by the Library.  Guest users will only be allowed on computers 

specifically configured for guest access.  Computers not set up or verified by I.T. Staff 

must not be connected to any Library computer network, except through the public 

wireless network.  

 



  

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POLICY #2024-10                                  Page 6 of 11 
 

Databases 

Preferred database applications are PostgreSQL and MySQL.  Other database 

applications may be used at the discretion of I.T.  

 

To ensure compatibility and integration of data, database creation shall involve I.T. 

Staff.  A database is not likely to be a single entity and integration with other databases 

must be addressed in the design stage. 

 

Software/Applications 

All software installed on Library owned computers shall be properly licensed, free of 

viruses and not jeopardize system security.  Copying software (piracy) is theft, a 

criminal offense under Canadian law, and will not be permitted on any Library computer 

system.  Before any software is purchased or installed, I.T. must be consulted to 

confirm compatibility with existing systems and licensing requirements.  Items such as 

screen savers may be installed, however if they are found to be in license violation or 

adversely affect system performance, they will be removed without notice.  All software 

must also be kept up to date with current patches and fixes.  I.T. will make 

arrangements for patches to be installed either manually or automatically. 

 

Records Retention/Freedom of Information 

Records/files on computer workstations, servers or in the e-mail system are documents 

in the custody and control of the Library Board, and as such are governed by the Public 

Libraries Act, Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act and the 

Board’s Record Retention By-law. All electronic records, including email, are subject to 

the access procedures and privacy protection requirements of the Act. 

  

Internet/Email Usage 

(See Internet Service Policy and Electronic Communications Policy) 

 

Compliance 

Failure to comply with these guidelines may result in the loss of computer or network 

privileges. The CEO or designate is authorized to request termination of the access 

privileges of any employee who fails to comply.  

 

In addition, any charges incurred as a result of non-compliance shall be the personal 

responsibility of the employee, and depending on the consequences of the employee’s 

actions, other appropriate disciplinary action may be taken. 

 

It is the intent of these guidelines that Staff who are assigned a computer, or who have 

access to the computer network, Internet or e-mail, are responsible and accountable for 

all usage under their account. 

  



  

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POLICY #2024-10                                  Page 7 of 11 
 

 

 

 

Appendices 

 Appendix A – I.T. Staff Contact Information 

 Appendix B – Terms for Remote Access 

 Appendix C – IT Procedures 

 

 

Related Policies 

Employment - Electronic Communications Policy 

Internet Service Policy 

 

 

 

Approved by the Innisfil Public Library Board, April 15, 2024 

Motion Number:2024.XX 

 

Supersedes Policy #2022-16, approved May 16, 2022, Motion #2022.42; and Policy 

#2014-23, approved November 17, 2014, Motion #2014.85; and Policy 2010-19, 

approved October 12, 2010, Motion #2010.65, &  

Policy #2005-07, approved September 12, 2005, Motion #2005.39 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



  

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POLICY #2024-10                                  Page 8 of 11 
 

 

Appendix A   
 

Innisfil ideaLAB & Library 

I.T. Staff 

Contact Information 
 

Preferred contact method is through email (itsupport@innisfilidealab.ca). 
 
 
Other contact information is as follows: 
 
 
 

During Office Hours 
 
John van Rassel 
jvanrassel@innisfil.ca 
705-796-7029 (cell) 
705-431-7410 5125 (desk) 
 
Martin Pennock 
mpennock@innisfilidealab.ca 
705-431-7410 5122 (desk) 
 
 
After Office Hours 
 
For afterhours support, use one of the above contact numbers.  This will reach the 
Stand-By Staff Member. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:itsupport@innisfil.library.on.ca
mailto:itsupport@innisfil.library.on.ca
mailto:itsupport@innisfil.library.on.ca
mailto:jvanrassel@innisfil.ca
mailto:mpennock@innisfilidealab.ca


  

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POLICY #2024-10                                  Page 9 of 11 
 

 

Appendix B 
 

Terms for Remote Access 
 

For purposes of software and technical support, software vendors will be granted 
remote access privileges to Innisfil Public Library’s systems according to the following 
terms. 
 
The vendor agrees: 

 to connect to systems only using methods configured by Innisfil Public Library 
I.T. Staff; 

 to maintain confidentiality and to not disclose any Innisfil Public Library 
connection information to third parties; 

 not to circumvent any security network measures in place; 

 to connect only for the purposes of provided software and/or technical support; 

 to promptly disconnect after work is finished; 

 not to change any settings not directly related to the issue being resolved; 

 not to alter any user’s access levels, even if directly related to the issue being 
resolved, without authorization from Innisfil Public Library I.T. Staff; 

 only disclose access codes/passwords to their staff that require access; 

 to notify Innisfil Public Library I.T. Staff when staff with knowledge of access 
codes/passwords leave the vendor’s employ. 

 
This service will be available to _________________________ from ______________ 
                                                     Vendor                                              start date 
 
 to ________________ at which time, permission will be revoked. 
         end date 
 

On behalf of Vendor: 
 
 

Name 
 
 

Signature 
 
 

Position 
 
 

Company 
 
 

Date 
 

 On behalf of Town of Innisfil: 
 
 

Name 
 
 

Signature 
 
 

Position 
 
 

Company 
 
 

Date 



  

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POLICY #2024-10                                  Page 10 of 11 
 

Appendix C – IT Procedures 
 

Procedure IT-01 - Systems Backup Procedure 
 

 All servers will be backed up Monday to Saturday inclusive. 

 Backups shall include data, server configurations, and any other important 
information that cannot be recovered from application reinstalls. 

 Backups are replicated to a server offsite once per week 

 At the end of each month, an offline backup will be made and stored offsite. 
 
 

Procedure IT-02 - Staff Change Notification 
 

1. Library Administration notifies IT Staff of staffing change, including Staff 
Member’s name and date of change. 

2. IT receives notification; if change is a new hire go to step #3. 

 transfer of staff, go to step 8; 

 retirement of staff, go to step 10; 

 extended leave, go to step 14; 

 termination, go to step 16. 
3. Create user account in Windows Active Directory and other systems as required. 
4. Notify service area of account creation and temporary password used. 
5. Configure email after user has logged on for the first time. 
6. Provide basic system training as required. 
7. Go to ***. 
8. Make appropriate security changes as required by staff move. 
9. Go to ***. 
10. Disable user’s access and remove group memberships on their last day of 

employment. 
11. Remove username from Exchange contact list. 
12. After two weeks, permanently delete user account and email mailbox unless 

other direction is received from Library Administration. 
13. Go to ***. 
14. Disable user’s access and remove group memberships on their last day before 

leave. 
15. Re enable access when Staff Member returns to work. 
16. Go to ***. 
17. Immediately remove all user access and group memberships upon notification of 

termination. 
18. Remove username from Exchange contact list. 
19. After two (2) weeks, permanently delete user account and email mailbox unless 

other direction is received from Library Administration. 
20. ***Notify Library Administration of action taken. 



  

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY POLICY #2024-10                                  Page 11 of 11 
 

Appendix ‘C’ 
Page 2 

 

Procedure IT-03 - User Passwords 
 

 Users will be provided with individual passwords; 

 I.T. Staff will assign passwords to new Staff. 

 Users will be required to update passwords on a yearly basis 
 
 

Procedure IT-04 - Remote Access – Software Support 
 

 Vendors must sign and agree to “Terms for Vendor Support”; 

 Access will only be given to the server containing the application and the term for 
which support is being given; 

 Each vendor will have their own login account and this account shall be a local 
user account only; 

 Access will be provided to servers through Terminal Services or other 
appropriate service.  This service must be tunneled through an encrypted SSH 

(Secure Shell) connection and clear text data must not be transmitted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	2a - 2024APR15 IPL Board Agenda - DRAFT
	5a.01.01 2024MAR18 Board Minutes Draft
	6a.01.01 2 experts explain why libraries can become cybercrime targets _ CBC News
	6a.02.01 1 million books and 4 months later, Tor..
	6a.03.01 Cyber security best practices to support local governments - Municipal World
	6a.04.01 Critical decision making during a cybersecurity attack - Municipal World
	6a.06.01 MLK-Case-Study
	6a.07.01 IFLA TREND REPORT UPDATE 2023 v3
	7a.01.01 CEO Rport March 2024
	March 2024 CEO Report Cover
	7a.01.01 March 2024 CEO Report

	7b.01.01 Municipal Council Report March 2024
	7e.01.01 2024.03.21 JHSC Meeting Agenda Minutes Draft (7)
	8a.01.01 LIB-07-2024 Library Associations
	10. Policy Change Summary
	10a.01.01 Information Technology Policy



